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guess, Company Exhibit 2 marked as Easement and

Company Exhibit 1, the letter.

A. There's 1. Is that 27

Q. Yes.

A. Ckay.

0. Your letter references a volume 11 page

407 in the Richland County Recorder's Office. 2And I
see at the last page of that easement it reads,
"volume 11 page 370," can you explain that
difference?

A, Yes. There are, as we've gtated before,
eight properties that I needed to identify the
easements on. Of those eight properties they crossed
three easements and T was uncertain of -- it's very
difficult to determine -- it was a typo. It's

actually a mistake on my part.

Q. It's a typo?
A. It's a typo. This i1s the easement that's
next to 407 -- volume 11 page 407 is the easement

that's one door down from Mrs. Dye's house. 370 --
volume 11, 370 actually encompasses her property, but
the wording is the same.

0. Company Exhibit 2, easement, is that the

easement you requested and pulled from real estate or

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Chio (614) 224-9481
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A. Yes.
Q. Okay.

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, I would like to
introduce an exhibit, but I don't have six copies of
the document. Ms. Dye also filed a version, the same
copy of this but a smaller scale of this document,
I'd like to introduce into evidence.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: So you only have
one copy of that?

MS. MILLER: I have one copy of this size
and one copy of the size Ms. Dye submitted. We can
go off of that size, it's just harder to read.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRTK: TLet's go off the
record for a minute.

{(Recess taken.)

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Let's go back on
the record. Ms. Miller.

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, I have a
document captioned Westfield Square Blocks. I would
like to have this document marked for identification
as a Company Exhibit 4.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: The document

shall be so warked.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (814) 224-9481
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(EXHIBIT MARKXED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)
MS. MILLER: May I approach the witness?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yes.

By Ms. Millex:

0.
been marked

opportunity

IT'm handing you a document that has just
ag Company Exhibit 4. I'll give you an

to review this document. Are you

familiar with this document?

i

Q.

Yes, I am.

Does this document indicate Ms. Dye's

plot? Actually, I'm golng to back up. What is this

document ?

A.

This is a block corridor, part of a

corridor section of Ontario, Ohic showing residents,

properties.
Q.
that?
AL
Q.

has pointed
A,
Q.
A

370."

And do you see Ms. Dye's property on

Yes, I do.

May the record reflect that the witness
to plot 2323.

Yes.

And what does it say above that plot?

"Ohio Edison Company Lease V-11, page

202

Armstrong & Ckey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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V-11 page 37072
A, Correct.
Q. Thank vyou.
MS. MILLER: Your Hcnor, I am handing the
witness Complainant's Exhibit 2.
0. Could vou -- are you aware of what trees

are in Complainant's Exhibit 2 A?

A Yeg, I am,.

Q. Ccould you state what trees those are?
A, I see a Birch, Arborvitae, Spruce.

Q. Are you aware of any other trees on

Ms. Dye's property that perhaps aren't indicated on
that diagram that were remove?
A On the photo, or the whole thing is this?
Q. On her property that -- I'll rephrase the
question. Are you familiar with other trees that
were removed from your vegetation management process
that you do not see -- that may not be present on
that exhibit?
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Exhibit 2 A?
Yes, Exhibit 2 A.
Ch, ves.

And what are thosce treeg?

N o e

There's more spruce and red maple.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-5481
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Q. And in Exhibit 2 A those trees around the
pole, is it permissible to have trees that close to
the pole?
A, No,
Q. Why not?
A. You need to provide a safe-working
environment around --
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Excuse me, nocw
we're going into expert testimony again.
MS. MILLER: I'll strike that.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Thank vou.
Q. What is the company's policy regarding
vegetation around the pole?
A. The pole needs to be clear for a
safe-working environment at the base of the pole.
0. And how do vyou know that?
A, Because 1lt's the company pollcy that I've

read and it's been communicated to me by my
superiors.
Q. Did they explain what safety hazards
exist?
A. Yes.
What explanation were you given?

A. In the event that the pole needs to be

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (&14) 224-%481
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¢limbed, we have to get to it and anchor safely

around that peole or a tower, any structure on

transmission.
Q. Were there any other safety risks
explained?
A Not gpecifically, no.
Q. Nothing about a lightning arrester?
A. There's a lightning arrester --

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Mg. Miller, are
vou leading the witness cor are you just trying to get
expert testimony in here that's not necessarily |
appropriate? Please make sure that you ask a direct
guestion. |

MS. MILLER: I'm sorry.

By Ms. Miller:

Q. Were there any other safety issues asked
or explained, excuse me?

A. Yes. In reference to the static wire on
top of our 69kV pole there is a ground wire that
travels down the outside of the pole and can be

damaged by treesg that come in contact with its

covering.
0. Have you seen thig on the pole?
A. Yes.

205

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio (£14) 224-9481
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Q. So trees close to a pole, are there any
height restrictions before they're removed?
A. No. The -- pole bases are cleared
regardless of herbaceous or woody vegetation. It has

to do with the access to the pole and the closeness
of that vegetation to the pole. Therefore, if we are
clearing that vegetation around the pole, we would
never have a height problen.

Q. You said that trees close to the pole,

it's not in their height but in their proximity to

the pole?
A Correct.
Q. And what is that proximity?
A. For this it's three feet.
Q. Did you measure the distance from the

pole from the trees on Ms. Dye's property?

A. Yes, I did.

0. And what was that distance?

AL I measured 25 feet from the center of our
line.

Q. Are those the ones right around the pole

or the ones --
A. Well, I wmeasured the edges of the

right-of-way, but --

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (&14) 224-95481
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Q. Were the trees around the pole touching
the pole?
A. I believe there was one that was touching

the pole. In this instance, the fact that I removed
the trees around the pole, they actually fell into
the fact that they are incompatible trees, so I
accomplished two goals by removing those trees.
Number one, removing incompatible vegetation on the
right-of-way and number two, clearing the required
circumference around that pole. It just so happened
that the vegetation 1 needed to clear for the
circumference was incompatible for the right-of-way
also.

Q. Yocu mentioned that Ms. Dye had a red

maple on hexr property?

A, Two.
Q. Do vou know how tall those trees grow?
A. Those trees have the potential to reach

50 to 60 feet in height at maturity.
Q. You say that Ms. Dye had a Birch tree con

her property?

A, Yes.
Q. Dc you know how tall those trees grow?
A, Similar to maples, ves, 65 feet tall,

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (6§14) 224-9481
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White Birch.

0. Doeg the width of a tree stump indicate
the height of the tree?

A No.

Q. A red maple tree, is it contained or is
that a tree that spreads out with long branches?

A. That has a wide canopy sometimes equal to
its height.

0. So to clarify, a red maple could be, the

width could be the same as its height?

A. At some stages of growth, yes.

Q. How fast have you seen the red maples
grow?

A. I have seen red maples grow three feet a
year.

Q. How about White Birch?

A. Similar.

Q. I'm going to draw your attention to the

Company Exhibit 2 A.
MS. KOLICH: Complainant.
0. I'm sorry, Complainant Exhibit 2 A.
Could you identify the Birch tree in this picture?
A. Yes. (Indicating.)

Q. And how tall ig that?

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Chio (614) 224-9481
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HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: For purposes of
the record, him pointing to the picture doesn't do
anything.
MS. MILLER: ©Oh, I'm sorry, the witness
has just identified the --
MS. KOLICH: Have the witnegs describe
which tree he's talking about.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: That would be
fine.
Q. Yes.
A. The Birch tree that I'm being asked about

is directly in front of the front door between the

pole and the front of the house.

Q. Could vou describe it?
A. White main stem, green leaves.
Q. Okay. How tall was that tree when you

removed it?

Al 14 to 16 feet tall.

C. We've talked about the height of the
tree. Have you ever seen gag on wires?

A, Yes, I have.

Q. Could you please explain?

A, Umn, during certain times of the year our

loads increase and the outside temperature is

Armgtronyg & Okey, Inc. Cclumbus, Ohio {(6§14) 224-9481
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increased and the conductors stretch and therefore
the lines sag.

Q. How much have you seen the lines sag?

A. Different -- there's different sag
footage by voltage. I've seen some s8ag up to 10 to
12 feet on a 345kV line.

0. How about a 69kv?

A, Three, four fteet.

Q. Do you know whether or not a tree has to
make contact with a wire to have an electrical
impact?

A. Yegs, I do know that.

Q. Please explain.

A. The tree does not have to make contact to
have an electrical impact with that wire. It needs
to come in -- within a certain distance of that wire.

0. Do you know what that digtance ig?

A. It would be, with a 6%kV, iL's just over

three feet.

MS. KOLICH: Can we have one minute? I
think we might be finished.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yesg.

(Discussion held off the record.)

Armstreong & Okey, Inc. Coclumbus, Chic (614) 224-9481
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By Mz, Miller:

Q. Okay. Just a few more guestions.

You had mentioned that yvou used two

contractors in connection with the work done at
Ms. Dye's, Nelson Tree Company and Davey Resources?

A Yes.

Q. And you also mentioned that one of your
respongibilities is quality control?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you review the work done by Nelson
Tree Company and Davey Resourcesg?

M. Yes, L did.

Q. And what did you £f£ind?

A. I found that in the case of the work

planning because it was a refusal process, by the

211

time I got involved with the guys from Davey who were

doing the work, not all the work had been identified,

so I jumped in in the middle of the process, so we
completed that together, so ultimately in the end
everything was done to my standard, our standard,
FirgtEnergy's, Jjust by the fact that we worked
together on it.

When it came to Nelson Tree Service, I

found that the yard was picked up sufficiently, the

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio (614) 224-9481
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driveway was swept, the lawn was raked as best as it
could have been. Due to the snow on the ground, I'm
sure that there was debris once it melted. And the
stumps were flush. When we remove a tree, we want
that stump to be no higher than three inches and that
was achieved. And then the area around the truck
where the chipper was swept and we got out of there
as best we could. So the gquality of the job they did
on Ferguson Road was up to par, ves.

Q. When you say up to par, was 1t in
compliance with the FirstEnergy vegetation management
policy?

A. Yes, 1t was.

C. Okay . T guess one last question. You
had mentioned that when you had visited Ms. Dye on
the day the trees were removed that she was --

MS. DYE: Speak up please.

Q. I'll restart.

You remember that concessions were made

to -- a concession offer was made to Ms. Dye; is that
correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And are you aware of her response?

A. I am aware of her first response. I am

Armstrong & Ckey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (614) 224-39481
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not aware of her second response because 1t was not
made directly by me the second tiwme.

Q. And her first response?

A. The concession offered was the
opportunity to relocate the trees that were left on
the property that we were starting to cut, the rest
of the 22 trees.

Q. And her response?

A. Her response wag, "Where will I put them
-- where would I put them?" And that's where I said,
"outside of the right-of-way or in the back yard."
And --

Q. So she didn't request that you stop the
work so she could relocate the trees?

A. No, not that she could relocate the
trees.

Q. Okay .

MS. MILLER: Thank you.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Is that all,
Mg. Miller? Are you done with your direct?

MS. MILLER: Yes. I'm sorry, I'm done
for now.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Thank you.

Ms. Dye, you may ask clarifying questions based on

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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the questions and the direct testimony that the
witness has given.

MS. DYE: I can ask him --

HEARTNG EXAMINER PIRTK: Ydu can ask him
questions.

MS. DYE: Ask him gquestions that he
proposed, right?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: You can ask him
questions.

MS. DYE: I mean ask him guestions, I'm
SOrry.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I'll let you
know if they go in the wrong directicn or if they go
too far.

MS. DYE: He did not contact me.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: No. You need to
ask him direct guestions. You made your testimony.
You're not now to like rebut what he's saying. You

just ask him questioning regarding his testimony.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
By Ms. Dye:
Q. Okay. If Lhe cycle check was done every

five years, why did you wait 10 years to addregss it?

Armstroncg & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (614} 224-9481
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MS. MILLER: Your Honor, facts not 1in
evidence.

MR. DYE: That's not in his statement.

MS. DYE: That's his statement.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I'm sorry, first
of all, Mr. Dye, we need to let Ms. Dye do the
crogg-examination. And I'll allow the guestion.

I'l1l allow the witness to answer the question to the
best of hig abilities and his direct factual
knowledge.

A, In the past, our cycles have not been in
gome cases where they need to be, so there are lines
that we've -- maybe didn't get ocur full completed
work done for various reasons. Maybe --

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Just to make the
witness aware, you only have to angwer to the best of
your factual knowledge and if you don't know, you can
gay vou don't know.

A My answer will be that. T wasg not
employed by the company five years ago, so I do not
have an answer for what happened on the last cycle.

I can only speak for thig cycle.
Q. Well, the rules still apply, don't they?

M8, MILLER: Your Honor.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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HEARTNG EXAMINER PIRIK: Ms. Dye, vyou
need to ask the witness direct questions not open
ended questions, factual guestions.

MS. DYE: Okay.

By Ms. Dye:

Q. My next question, three-foot sag over 100
vards or 200 yards, what is the distance to the next
pole?

A, I'm not sure I understand the question.

Q. The three-foot sag in the line that you
talked about.

A Yes, ma'am.

Q. If there was a three-feet sag over 100
vards or 200 yards, what is the distance to the next
pole?

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, the witness is
neot an expert.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I'm not sure I

understand the question per say. Are you asking for

MS. DYE: He said there was a sag --
Q. You said there was a sag in the line,
right?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Are you asking

Armstrong & QOkey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-%481
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factually what the distance --
MS. DYE: Yeah, uh-hul.
HEARING EXAMTINER PIRIK: -- between two
poles is?
MS. DYE: No. I'll repeat the guestion.
Q. Three-foot sag in the line over 100 vards

or 200 vards, what i1s the distance to the next pole?
A. Um, my reference to three foot of sag is
something that I have witnessed on 69kV corridors in
the past and may not be particular to the span that's
in your vyard.
O. You still didn't answer that.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I think he
angwered it to the best of his ability. Do ycu have
another guestion that you'd like to asgk?

MS. DYE: Okay.

Q. You said that you gave me an option the
day that you cut my trees.
A, Yes, ma'am.
Q. You didn't, because --
MS. MILLER: Your Honor.
Q. -- I come out crying.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: We can't do

testimony now. You already gave your testimony, but

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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yvou can ask him questions about it, factually what
happened that day, and if he recollects --

MR. DYE: You can't make a statement.
All you can do 1is ask a questiomn.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Right. Thank
you.,
Q. Didn't you have my trees cut, when I come

out crying you were cutting around the pole, right?
A Yes.
Q. And almost all of my trees were cut, you
gave me no option?
A. That 1s correct.
Q. And you just stated that ycu did have
part of it and you stopped the tree service?
A. For the remainder of the trees that were
left on the property --
Q. (Statement stricken from the receord.)
MS. MILLER: Your Honor.
HBEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Ms. Dye, I need
you to ask specific questions.
M5. DYE: I'm sorry.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Like, if vyou
have specific questions about where they were in the

process and you want to point to the diagram or

Armgtrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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gsomething like that, you can do that, but you have to
does him within his knowledge specifically. You need
to be sgpecific.

MS. DYE: Okay.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: And you can't
disagree with him. This is his testimony.

MS. DYE: Okay. Okay.

By Ms. Dye:

0. The chainsaws were there -- when did vyou
give me the option? You said you gave me an option
and stopped the tree cutting service, but I was not
out there until you almost had them cut?

A. I gave you the option when vou first came
out of the house.

Q. (Gtatement stricken from the record.)

MS. KOLICH: Objection.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yeah. We need
to strike that from the record any disagreement with
the witness and let him answer the gquesgtion.

M5. DYE: T'm sorry.

A. Can I continue?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yesg, you can
continue.

A The plan which I gave the option for

Armngtrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chic (614} 224-95481
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relocation was probably 60 or 70 percent of the way
through the process on Mrs. Dye's property, 60 or
70 percent of the trees were already removed. But
that's -- at that point in our removal process is
when you came out of the house and I actually got to
talk to you and that is when I made the offer. So
the offer was for the remaining 30 oxr 40 percent of
the trees, not all of them, because most of them were
gone .

Q. All of them were gone, wasn't they, when
I come out crying?

A, No.

Q. They were cutting on that last pine tree,
wasn't they, Blue Spruce pine tree?

A. Yeg. They were into the western row of
the spruce trees, the western side of your property.

Q. A1l of the trees, right?

A The Spruces on the west side of the front
vard, we were already into the batch of them. I told
the men to --

Q. I asked you a question, wasn't they all

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: No, I helieve

he's answering the question. I mean, he's trying to

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Celumbug, Ohio {614) 224-9481
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answer specifically where it was.

A. Yes.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Now, the western
side, just so I know, we haven't done east and west.
When you're facing west, you're talking about the
right-hand side?

A, Yes, ma'am, the right-hand side. There
was a clump of four or five closer to the house that
we've talked about before and then some under the
line that was smaller than the ones by the house.

And I believe to the best of my knowledge that at the
time that you and I had that conversation, we were
just beginning to cut that clump heading towards the
house. There was that four or five left Lo do and
there may have been three.

Q. You -- excuse me.

MR. DYE: Question.

Q. You sald that they were all cut and you
stopped and told me that you would give me an option

to transplant my trees. There wasn't any, was there?

L. Yeg, there were.
Q. No.
AL At the time that I offered ycu the option

to relocate, there were some of the trees left.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio ({614} 224-9481
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Q. Did you not tell me --

MS. MILLER: Objection, asked and
answered.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I think he has
answered the guestion as far as what trees were left.

MS. DYE: Yes.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: So do you have
any other questions that you'd like to ask the
witness?

MS. DYE: @Give me a moment, please.

Q. Was my White Birch trimmed in November of
1067

A. I do not know.

Q. (Statement stricken fTrom the record.)

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, I object.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yes. That would
be stricken from the record, her response will be
gtricken from the record. This is the witness's
testimony. Please don't respond to his answers.
Okay .

MR. DYE: Just ask quegtions.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Do you have any
other questionsg, Ms. Dye?

0. The things that you said on here --

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (6l14) 224-9481
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HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Ms. Dye, I'm
sorry, do you have any other questions con what he's

said today?

By Ms. Dye:
Q. Did you say vyou contacted me, you didn't,
did you?
A. I attempted to.
Q. No. And --
MR. DYE: Make it a question.
Q. Why was Mark Weidemyre and Dan Zeiterxr

sent to my house instead of you with a voucher for
$4507?

A. I know Dan is also on the city ccuncil
because I heard his name through Mark. I do not know
whose decision that was to approach you, if it was
yours or if it was theirs, if they thought that they
could help the situation. My involvement in that
situation was con the other end. I was approached by
our employee in Mansfield at the Ohio Edison office
on Ashland Road to see if we could still offer that
concession. And I agreed to it. I saild,
"Absolutely, we will still offer that concession.
How do we get it to Mrs. Dye? I know she really

doesn't want to do business with me." So I went back

Armstrong & QOkey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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through the Erie manager to the city ccuncilman and I
believe that's how that came about.

Q. I don't quite know how to ask this. But
if you didn't come back to my property and offer me
the voucher -- how many times, four, did you say you
contacted me?

A. Attempted to, yes.

Q. Why couldn't vyeu come back to my property

to offer me the voucher?

A. It'e not that I couldn't. It's not that
I wouldn't have. It's that the opportunity for that
city councilman, that contact that I just spoke
about, happened before I would have come back down to
Mansfield and done that. It was that fast. They
wanted to get a resclution immediately.

0. Okay.

A, And their mention was that you were very
upset and by me being there would probably have made
your situation worse, so I opted to stay out of it.
T would -- that's my answer.

Q. You said Weldemyre was with you, you did
say that, didn'‘t you?

A, Yes, ma'am,

Q. When you went around the week before the

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, OChio (614} 224-9481
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cutting of my trees?

A, I'm not sure if it was a week, but we did
travel.

Q. And you specifically told him what trees
you were cutting on my property?

L. Yes, I did.

Q. (Statement stricken from the r=cord.)

MS. MILLER: I cbiject.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Objection
sustained.

MS. MILLER: I'm sorry.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: That's ockay.

MS. MILLER: Move to strike.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yes, it will be
stricken from the record, that part that --

MS. DYE: Pardon?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I was just
clarifying for the Court Reporter what portion would
be stricken.

MS. DYE: ©Okay. Let me look at this a
minute.

By Ms. Dye:
Q. Did you say that you rang my front

doorbell?

Armgtrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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A, Um, I canncot remember which dcorbell we

rang, but if we can't get a doorbell, we knock.

Q. You did say you knocked at the garage
doox?

A. Yeg, I have knocked con that door.

Q. {Statement stricken from the record.)

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: You need to just
agk him questions. Okay.
M3. DYE: Okay.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: You've already
given your testimony.
MS. MILLER: Move to strike, Your Honor.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIX: Yes, that will
be stricken from the record.
By Ms. Dye:
Q. Did you say you walked to my front door
and rang the doorbell?
A, And I have, yes. Yes, I have walked to
yvour front door in the past.
Q. Was there not snow on the front porch?
There was snow out there partially when you guys cut
the trees, right?
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Mg. Dye, I need

you to be very specific as to when you're talking

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio (614) 224-9481
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about.

MS. DYE: I'm trying.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: What day are you
talking about that you're asking the witness? You
need to be very specific.

Q. The day that you cut my trees, did you
come to my front door?

4. No, I did not, not the day.

Q. (Statement stricken from the record.)

MS. MILLER: Move to strike that last
part.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yes. Ms. Dye, I
think -- I'm going to say this one more time and I
may have to ask you to stop yvour questioning if you
can't follow my directive

MS. DYE: Okay.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I really need
you to not respond to his questiong. Please just ask
him questions and don't respond or try to testify.
You've given your testimony. The information that
you're mentioning may be in your testimeony. It's
just this 1is -- 1it's this witness's turn to testify.

Do you have any more guesticns that you'd

like to ask of him?

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-95481
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By Ms. Dye:
Q. Didn't you say you sent me a worksheet?
A, Yeg, ma'am, in the letter.
Q. (Statement stricken from the record.)

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Now see there
again you responded. Now we're going to have to
strike that from the record because you can't say
that. You can ask him a gquestion and Mr. Failor will

answer the question and then you can ask another

gquestion.

MS. DYE: Okay.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: But you can't
respond to him. I'm goling to glve you one more

chance to ask questions or I'm going to have to ask
you to stop because really the purpose of what vou're
doing is to clarify anything that he said. What
vou're really doing ig just repeating what he's
already testified to. BSo you know, if you lock on
your list and you find that you have things that you
need to clarify, T would recommend that you ask those
guestions to be sure it's clear. But I wouldn't
re-ask the questions that he's already answered.

MS. DYE: I've already asked him all I'm

going to ask him.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Okay. Thank
you. Ms. Failor, I do have some clarification
gquestions. Let's see 1f I can get through this list.

EXAMINATION
By Hearing Examiner Pirik:

Q. Okay. Barly on in your testimony you
were talking about Davey Resources and the work plan
guidelines and they put together the work line and
you gald the workers are given a line to begin on,.

In that situation are you talking about a

transmission line?

A, Yes, I am.

Q. You're not talking about distribution
lines?

A. I am not talking about disgtribution.

Q. Okay. I'm looking at Company Exhibit 3.

It's the work plan.

A. Okay.

Q. There you go. I'm locking at this and it
appears, and you can tell me if I'm wrong, but you
mentioned that several ways that the company marks
trees that are going to be taken care of. 1t looks

like the blank before removed trees marked is

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbusg, Ohio (614) 224-9431
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checked, there's a checkmark in that blank and it
loocks to me like there's an X in the box that said
"Red X." First of all, this work plan is just for
Mrs. Dye's property, right?

A. Right.

Q. So it looks like there's two boxes
checked, like one that there would be a red X and
alsgo that they are all incompatible species. But yet
in your testimony it seemed like there weren't red
X's, so that's my question.

A. Yes. When you get two boxes checked like
that, it could go -- on Mrs. Dye's property here's
what happened. There arxe trees close to the edge of
the right-of-way and the right-of-way edges have
already been identified by the work planners, so
rather than have a tree crew -- we may not have the
luxury of having the work planners go back there to
go over what they marked in the field. We will mark
those trees cleose to the right-of-way with an X with
a line underneath it, meaning that vyes, this tree is
on the right-of-way and it's c¢lose to the edge. 1In
reference to "All incompatible species located on the
right-of-way," that would be the regt of the trees in

the center where we wouldn't want to spend the time

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614} 224-9481
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putting ¥'s and lines on 20 other trees. Or a
situaticn where the edge is very well defined, maybe
a field, but there's trees in the middle of the field
or a front yard with trees but the edges are well
defined, there aren't any trees to decipher how close
to the edge, sc in this case, there were treesg close
to the edge, 24 feet, they got an X with a line
underneath them.

0. So are you personally aware, I mean, did
vou see treesg that had X's on them, do you know for
certain that there were X's on certain trees?

A, Yes. On that, yeah.

Q. It's kind of hard. 1T guess I need to
look at one of the Complainant's exhibits, which T
understand isn't to scale, but it does to an extent
show where some of the trees are. It'e that exhibit
right on top. I don't know, Mr. Failcor, if vou could
get that exhibit.

A. Most of the trees I believe on the
property had X's on them.

Q. Are you perscnally aware of where these
dots are on the upper diagram in Complainant's
Exhibit 1, where the X's were?

A, Yes. All four of those trees had ¥X's on

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, OChic (614) 224-9481
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them.
0. Are you referring to the four treesg in

the upper right-hand corner of this diagram?

A. Yes, I am.

Q. Were there any other trees that had X's
on them?

A. I believe the spruce that was at 17 feet.

Q. Which one is that?

A. Upper left-hand corner.

Q. Okay.

A. And I couldn't say fcor sure about the

rest of them.

Q. Okay. Well, then when we go back to the
work plan, Company Exhibit 3, and it says "All
incompatible species -- it's been a long day for all
of us. I want to be sure I understand. What
specifically is the Company's definition of
incompatible species? Are you aware of what that
definition is and that what that policy is?

A, Yes.

0. And where do I find that, is there a
document that I find that in?

A We have it in our Vegetation Management

Specification book.
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MS. MILLER: I have a marked copy of that
book, I mean, highlighted.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Can we go off
the record for a minute?

{(Discussion held off the record.)

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Let's go back on
the record. I had asked the witnegs with regard to a
definition of incompatible species. My understanding
in the discussion off record with the company and
showing it to the Complainant is that there is a
document. We only have one copy of it. I'll let
Ms. Miller proceed with exactly an explanation of
that .

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, I have document
captured FirstEnergy Vegetation Management
Specifications. I would like to have this document
marked for identification as Company Exhibit 5.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: The document is
so marked.

(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)

HEARING EXAMINER PIRTIK: Could you give
that to the witness? I'd like the witness to have
that? Because 1'm specifically asking -- or ig it

possible for you to find the page in there where the

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (£14) 224-9481
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definition of incompatible species is located so that
I can reference that on the record.

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, I could gpeed up
the process and f£lip to the section.

HEARTING EXAMINER PIRIK: That would be
fine.

MS. MILLER: May I approach the witness?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yesg.

THE WITNESS: Okay. I've found it.

By Hearing Examiner Pirik:

Q. Do you have a page number?
A. Page 24.
Q. Page 24 of Company BExhibit 5. That's

really all I was looking for, so thank you. I have

more guestions so don't leave. Don't go anywhere.

A. Okay.
Q. I'm not sure there is a clarification,
but I'm not sure what my reference ig. Really early

on in your testimony you said something about off
pole measurement cor off wire measurement and it wasg
when -- I think it was when vou were talking about
what the easement -- are you talking about 50 feet
from the center of the pole?

A. 25 feet from the center of the pole.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc., Columbus, Ohio (£14) 224-9481
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Q. 25 feet from the center of the pole?
A And basically, you would develop two
lines parallel, one on each side of the line.
Q. Okay. Thank you. I think that clarified

your testimony. Isg FirstEnergy still conducting work
on Ferguson Road, are there more Lrees that need Lo
be removed; do you know?

A. Not at this time.

Q. So just sc I'm clear, and I think you
clarified this, but I want to be certain, there were
more than eight residents on Ferguson Rcad that were
affected by the tree cutting. There were eight that
were refusing the tree cutting and you were working
with those eight?

AL Correct.

Q. Okay. You got into an explanation of the
different types of attempts and contacts that were
made with the Complainant and the two work planner
attempts. The first one -- the first one you said,
and you referred to Complainant's Exhibit 6, the door
hanger, and you said the first one occurred on
February 2nd, 2007. The date at the bottom of the
hanger says, "Work 1s scheduled to start after

February 2nd, 2007." Is that alsc the date that the

Armstrong & Okey, Tnc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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hanger was hung?

A, Yes, it is. And I -- yes, it is.

Q. And then you mentioned that the work
planners went out to Ms. Dye's residence on
February 9th?

A. Uh-huh.

Q. And I believe your testimony said that
the work plamner was successful in making contact
with her. How do you know that?

A. Well, they were not successful on the
9th. The door card made it successful. Ag Mrs. Dye
indicated, she called the number and they had a
convergsation, they being Mrg. Dye and the work
planner, so there was a contact there made, but it
was from the door card hung on the 2nd.

0. Okay. 8o I need to be clear abocut this
because I believe you said that the work planners had
two contacts with the Complainant, one was the door
hanger, another was an on sgite visit on February 2th.
And I might have been -- you kncw, I know it was on
the record because I had the reporter re-read the
answer, that you said that the February 9th on site
contact was successful, but what you're clarifying is

that -~ did you mean to say something else?

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohic (614) 224-9481
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A I think in that line of questioning I was
trying tc refer to the phone call that they had, in
that they had two attempts, they made two physical
attempts to contact her, but the cnly connection was
made over the phone.

Q. Qkay. So the work planners, CLhey wmade
two attempts to contact her, one on February 2nd,
that was unsuccegssful, one on February 9th, on site
was unsuccessful?

A, Correct.

Q. And -- but they had a contact with her
when she called them on whatever date she called
them?

A. That's correct.

0. Do you know the date that she called
them?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Don't have the date. Okay. And then you

said that you had four attempts, one was on

February 12th and you had the Davey planner with you
and that was unsuccessful. There was no answer and
you said you attempted both doors. The second
contact was with the council members. Was that --

A. That was the second.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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Was that successful?

No.

When they were with you?
No.

You did not have contact?
We did not, no.

Do yvou know the date cof that contact?

RO S SR

February 1%th, the morning of the 19th.

Q. That was the morning of the 1%th. And
then you sgaid your third contact was February 19th
when the letter was sent?

A. The letter was my third contact.

Q. Right. Was that letter a registered or
certified letter?

A. No, it was not.

Q. Ckay. And then what was your fourth
contact? I didn't quite get that.

A, We didn't get to that. It was a phone
call and that was on the 26th and I didn't get
anywhere with that.

Q. So your fourth contact was on
February 26éth and you attempted to call the
Complainant?

i (Nods head up and down.) The day before

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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we set out to remove the trees.

0. Okay. There's a question. Very early on
in the Complainant's testimony we were presented with
a document, Company Exhibit 1. Did you draft this
letter, Company Exhibit 1, which is dated
February 19th? You've mentioned it numerous times in

your testimony, but I don't know if it was ever

brcached?
A Parts of it.
0. Parts of it?
A, Yes, parts of it.
Q. But you're aware of the information

that's in here and what was attached to this lettex?

A. Absolutely.

Q. It says the -- the lasgt line in the first
paragraph says, "General work practices and outlined
on the attached work plan and enclosed brochure."

A. Yes.

Q. The work plan, is that the work plan you
referenced in Company Exhibit 37?

A, Yes, 1t is.

0. And what's the brochure, is there -- do
we have a brochure?

A. I don't believe so.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio (614) 224-%481
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HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: I would ask --

MS. KOLICH: We could gubmit it as a late
file exhibit, if you'd like, Your Honor.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yes, I would
like the brochure that's referenced in Company
Exhibit 1 to be as a late filed exhibit. T will mark
it as Liate Filed Company Exhibit 6.

if you could provide copies of that to
Ms. Dye as well as the bench.

M3. MILLER: Your Honor, I do have copies
of the brochure. I just don't have gix copies of it.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Six coples?

MS. MILLER: Or I don't have enough
copies to go around.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Can we go off
the record?

(Discussion held off the record.)

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Let's go back on
the record. While we were off the record, we
verified that there 1s one copy of the brochure. And
Ms. Miller, would you like to take it [rom there?

MS. MILLER: Your Honor, I have a
document captioned at the front, Maintaining Safe and

Reliable Service. I would like Lo have this document

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (814) 224-9481
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marked for identification as Company Exhibit 6, Late
Filed.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: The document
will be marked as Late Filed Company Exhibit 6.
(EXHIBIT MARKED FOR IDENTIFICATION.)
HEARING EXAMTNER PIRIK: And I also need
tc clarify that the document we marked as Company
Exhibit 5 is going to be Late Filed Company Exhibit
5.
MS. MILLER: May 1 approach the witness?
HEARTING EXAMINER PIRIK: Yes.
THE WITNESS: Yesg, this is our brochure.
By Hearing Examiner Pirik:
Q. And is that the brochure that was
attached to the letter?
A. Yes, it is.
Q. Okav. That's all I needed to know ci
that gquestion. You mentioned concessions, the gift
card, first of all, it was a little -- I just want to

be sure I clarified. I think when Ms. Dye asked you
a question she mentioned the gift card concessicn
propogsal was $450. I think your testimony said 400.
What's the correct amount so I have that?

A. I remember having a discussion about 400.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio (614) 224-9481
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It very well could have been bumped to 450. By the
time it left wmy hands, I don't remember.
0. So it could be either?
A. It could be either.
Q. It's one of those. And what was the gift

card for?

A, The gift cards are used primarily for
Lowes, WalMart or Home Depot. Actually, a gift card
ig generated from this form.

Q. So this gift card is a generic gift card
that could be used in several places?

A. There was a FirstEnergy form that we
asked them to sign, which identifies the property
owner, which identifies the line of the property, the
property owner and what work we did there and if it
did comply to all of our specifications. 2aAnd then
there's a section for a nursery because some
nurseries work with us and will take that payment.

Or there's a section for WalMart, Lowes or Home
Depot. We actually have a person in our office
physically take that form and go purchase a gift card
at that location and then mail it to the property
owner.

Q. So what was being offered to Ms. Dye was

Armetrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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the voucher and once she made her selection then
there would be a gift card and once she --
A Yes.
Q. -- took that wvoucher. Okay. How was the

400 or 450, how was the amount of the gift card
determined, because in this gituvation specifically

are you aware of how it was determined with Mg. Dye's

A. Yeah. We have -- myself and Kurt Gardner
came up with the value amount and he suggested the
400.

Q. Does the company, I guess I'm really
asking.

A. Doeg Lhe company? Yeah, the company has
a rule of thumb and it is three to five trees removed
$75, so for every three to five trees removed a
credit voucher can be written for $75.

Q. Is that like a written policy that the
company has or is that what you've been told you're
allowed to cffer?

A, That's what I've been told in wy job
specification handboock, is where that comes from as
the guideline.

0. I'm not going to ask for the handbook.

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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Looking at Complainant's Exhibit 2, in
your -- I mean, you were physically there when the
trees were being cut down. Looking at the pictures
in A, does A depict the size of the trees that you
saw on February 27th? Or I'm nol real sure how --
I'm trying to understand frcm your perspective how
tall the trees were and I'm trying to do it in
reference to this picture in A.

A, I think that this picture is a little
deceptive because the property has a slope to it so
there may be an angle at the picture, slight slope,
but these trees may not appear to be the right size
at the time when we removed them. But I would tend
to agree with the testimony of Mr. Dye in his
agssessment of the treesg.

Q. The height of the trees?

A. The height of the trees absclutely. T do
agree with what he was on record as saving.

0. Okay. That answers my questions.

And I just want to clarify further. When
Ms. Dye was asking you guestions, there was talk
about a first response and a second response when it
came to concesggions.

A. Right.

244
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Q. Ts the first response referring to the
offer on February 27th?

A, Yes.

Q. And is the second response referring to
when the council members went to her home and you
were not present but they went to her home?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you know, are treeg in
neighboreg' yards similar to the trees in Ms. Dye's
yard not trimmed, I wmean, or have all of the trees
along that street been trimmed similar to Ms. Dye's
or are there still, in your knowledge, are there
still trees?

A, There are still trees on that street that
have yet to have been affected that were not affected
during this process that I was involved with in early
2007.

0. And to vour knowledge, why is that?

A, Because of the distribution forester, the
distribution lines that are hanging on the western
gide of Ferguson Road.

Q. Okay. Wait, the western side of Ferguson
Road?

A. Okay. TIf you're looking at Ms. Dye's

245
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house and you're looking to the left, it would be the
section that I did my work at because it was just
transmigsion. The section to the right included both
and have been affected on a different cycle.

Q. Okay. So I'm going to look at
Complainant's Exhibit 2 again, number K, letter K.

A, Uh-huh.

Q. And we're looking at again at the lines.

A, Yes.

Q. This is the pole that's in the middle of

Mg. Dye's vyard; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Facing Msz. Dye's house?

A. Yes.

Q The work that vou were involved in and

the work plans you were involved in were to the left
of this pole; is that correct?

Al Uh-huh.

0. And that's because that only involves
transmigsion?

A. Yeg.

Q. So the plans to the right of that pole

are in a different work plan that someone else 1is

working on because it involves transmission and

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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distribution?
A. Because it involves distribution.
Q. Right. Because it only involves

digtribution or it involves both?

A Because it involves --
0. Bath?
A Well, the c¢ircuit that -- the

distribution circuit that ig hanging below that
transmission wire was due at the same time or shortly
before that transmission was, so he got there first
and therefore I wouldn't have to work that until my
next cycle. I wouldn't have to do that until my next
cycle, which is my responsibility.

0. So, you will be responsible for what's
done on the right-hand gide. It's just the
individual that works the distribution vegetation
management did what they needed to do based upon the
company's guidelines?

A. Yes. And subsequently, got distance that
we needed away from our power lines for that cycle.
The trees are far enough away on the cycle. But
today, at this juncture today, he would never have
gone to the left of that pole, so that falls under my

responsibility and I didn't need to go to the right

Armestrong & Okey, Inc. Columbug, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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of it. T didn't need to go passed Ms. Dye's property
and we treat properties consistently. We treat a
prcperty as a whole not a part.

Q. Of the eight residents that were refusing
to have a change or to a concessicn, vou mentioned
that gseven of them, their issues were resolved. How
were those issues resolved specifically?

A. We were able to make -- I was able to
make contact with them, most of them through the
letter process, which was -- they were all sent out,
all eight of them were sent ocut on the 18th. There
was a restaurant involved, there was an apartment
complex involved. Part of the regolution process is
the ability to have a conversation, 1 think, and it's
very important to -- the communication process
between the forester and the property owner are very
important. It shows what we want to do and why we
want to do it and what we can do to help you in the
future. The fun part of the job actually working
with somebody and saying, hey, you unfortunately have
to live with this transmission line so let part of my
resolution be helping you landscape your yard if
you're in that situation.

Q. So specifically, I mean, did they receive

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chio (614) 224-9481
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vouchers?
A. Yes.
Q. Did they receive tree stump removal?
A. Everyone received stump grinding.

Everyone but one received a credit voucher and that
was the restaurant. And where the property owner
wanted to do it, they were allowed to relocate by
June 1st of 2007.

And I believe I had one property owner
take me up on that offer and that was Mrs. Dye's
neighbor to the left and unfortunately they couldn't
get: it done and T ultimately removed the trees. But
in my conversation with them, in my resolution with
them, they couldn't get the trees relocated. They
asked me could I up my credit voucher because I was
going to remove the trees and get rid of the stumps
for them, I did that. So that's how we came to a
resolve.

C. And how many treeg were there in that

neighbor right to the left of her; do you recall?

A, I think there were --
Q. How many --

A How many trees?

C. Yeah, how many treesg?

Armstrong & Ckey, Inc. Columbug, Ohic (614) 224-2481
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A, I want to say there was 19, but I may be
mistaken. I may be remembering wrong. I'd have to
look.

Q. And what was the voucher, how much was
the voucher for?

A i believe the voucher was for $300.

Q. And to your recollection today you felt
that was like 19 trees?

A. I believe so.

Q. Okay. All right. I have one more
guestion. Looking at, I believe it's Complainant's
Exhibit 8, which is the sign.

A, The sign?

0. Yeah, underneath that one. Do you recall

seeing this sign on Ms. Dye's property?

A, I recall seeing a sign like this, almost
exactly like this. There was one on the back door,
the garage door and there was one in one yard arcund
the trees around the pole, so yes, I do. I know that
when T removed the tree that the sign was in, I toock
the sign and this one must have been the one that was
on the door.

0. Okay. BEven though you saw the sign, did

you go on to Ms. Dye's property and try to contact

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-5481
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her?

A. Yeah. Even if the sign was hanging, we
carried on with those contact attempts that we talked
about.

Q. Okay.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: All right. I
believe that's all I have. Do vou have any redirect,
Mgs. Miller?

MS. MILLER: I do a few guestions.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
By Ms. Miller:
Q. You mentioned that the neighbor's trees
-~ or excuse me. You mentioned that the neighbors

could not relocate thelr treegs?

A. Yeah,
0. Do you know why?
A. Yes, I do know why. They did attempt to

relocate the trees; however, they hired a contractor
who while relocating the first tree hit Lhelr gas
line and the money that they had used to repair
whatever damages they had was the money they were
going to use to relocate the trees. So we were able

to contact each other after June 1lst and come to that

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbust, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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resolution of me removing the trees.

Q. Did you contact them or did they contact
you?

A. I contacted them because it was passed
June lgst and I'm required to -- I'm required to check
on trees that I allow to be relocated. Once that
date passes, T have check on the trees to make sure
they were relocated and these were not, so I had to
find out why.

Q. You were asked why didn't you make
another attempt after you removed the trees to offer

Ms. Dye a concession. Were you ever threatened by

Ms. Dye?
A, Um, ves, 1 was.
Q. Can you tell us about it.
Al Yeah. It was when I was cutting the

trees on the neighbor's property. She heard the saws
running. She came out. She said she wanted to beat
me in the face with a baseball bat.
M5. DYE: Speak up a little louder.
A. Mrg. Dye said that ghe wanted to beat me
in the face with a baseball bat.
MS. MILLER: No further guestions.

MS. KOLICH: No.

Armstrong & Ckey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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MS. MILLER: Excuse me.
MS. KOLICH: You have to authenticate 5.
By Ms. Miller:
Q. I guess just for the record we are going
to get an exhibit we have identified as Late Filed

Company Exhibit 5. Are you familiar with this

document?
A, Yes, I am.
Q. Can you tell us what this document is?
A. It's the FirstEnergy Vegetation

Management Specification book.

0. What is this used for?

A, This is given Lo our contractors., It's
their specifications for working on our property,
working in our forestry department.

MS. MILLER: No further questions.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIX: Thank vou,
Mr. Failor.
THE WITNESS: Thank vyou.
MS. MILLER: Your Honor, T'd like to move
at this time for admission of the Company's exhibits.
HEARING EXAMINER PIRIX: We'll go one
exhibit at a time.

With regard to Company Exhibit 1, you

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Chic (614) 224-5481
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move for admission?

MS. MILLER: I move for admission.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Okay. Ms. Dye,
do you have any objection to admitting the
February 19th, Company Exhibit 1 to the recoxrd?
Considering the fact that it was --

MS. DYE: I do because they didn't
contact me.

HBEARINCG EXAMINER PIRIK: Considering the
tact that it was attached to your complaint.

MS. DYE: 1t wasn't.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: It was attached
to your complaint.

MS. DYE: Oh, okay, to my complaint.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: The document
will be admitted into the record.

MS. DYE: Okay.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRLK: With regard to
Company Exhibit 2, which is the Deed of Easement.

MS. MILLER: The Company moves to have it
entered into the record.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Ms. Dye, do you
have any objection to this going into the record?

MS. DYE: What one is that? Repeat it.

Armstrong & Qkey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614} 224-35481
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HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Company Exhibit
2, which is the Deed of Easement. Do you have them
in front of yvou? I believe you've been given copies
of all of these documents.

MS. DYE: ©No, I don't have any objection.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Okay. The
cdocument will ke admitted into the record.

Company Exhibit 3 is the work plan for
the corridor.

MS. MILLER: The Company moves to have it
entered intc evidence.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Ms. Dye, with
regard to this work plan for the corridor, do you
have any objection to it being admitted?

MS. DYE: I didn't receive a work order.

HEARINGC EXAMINER PIRIK: Do you have any
objection to this document as this witness presented
it being admitted into the record?

MS. DYE: No.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Okay. The
document will be admitted.

With regard to Company Exhibit 4, which
is the plat that was presented. And you did have a

copy, I believe you received.

Armstrong & Ckey, Inc. Columbus, Chio {(614) 224-9481
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MS. MILLER: The Company requests to have
that moved into evidence.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Thank vyou.

Ms. Dye, do you have an objection to that plat?

MS. DYE: I didn't hear. Which one?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: It's Company
Exhibit 4, which is the plat. 1It's that big
document.

MS. DYE: This?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: VYes.

MS. DYE: I have no objections.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Okay. That will
be admitted into the record.

Now with regard to both Late Filed
Exhibits 5 and 6.

MS. MILLER: The Company moves to have
Exhibits 5 and 6 entered into evidence.

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Okay. Ms. Dye,
do you have any objection to them, although they are
exhibits that I'm requesting, because they clarify
the record? We don't have copies of them. One is
the book and the other one ig the brochure that was
attached to the letter referenced in the letter.

MS. DYE: Don't matter.

256
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HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Those documents,

the Company Late Filed Exhibits 5 and 6 will be
admitted intoc the record.

MS. KOLICH: For the record, we will
provide Mrs. Dye with a copy via mail as well as --
would you like it docketed or would you just like it
sent to you directly?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: Since the Court
Reporter has copies and they will be part of record
in that sense and they'll ke attached to the
transcript, I think you can just send them to me as
Examiner. It will be sufficient.

We come to the point in the proceeding
where typically I have two choices: I can ask for
the testimony Lo be summarized either in closing
statement or in briefs.

Briefs are basically a summary of the
testimony that was provided today and partiesg take
their testimony and they explain what their testimony
is and then they use their testimony to kind of say
whether or not they agree with what the other party
said. Tt's also -- briefs are alsc used for an
opportunity to set forth arguments regarding legal

iggues. In this situation, it would be legal issues

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614) 224-9481
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regarding the rights of right—of—way, easements.

I don't believe that closing statements
would be appropriate at this time. I don't think it
will covexr what I need, which is, I need arguments
and explanations about easements and rights-of -way
and those legal issues. So I am recommending that we
do briefs. Let's go off the record and talk about
that.

(Discussion held off the record.)

HEARING EXAMINER PTRTIK: Let's go back on
the record. After discussions with parties and in
light of the fact that there is at least one legal
issue that needs to be addressed before I can give a
recommendaticn to the Commission, I'm going to allow
an opportunity for parties to file briefs. It's not
reguired that a party files a brief; however, the
dates that we have set forth will be, initial briefs
will be due September 14th, 2007 with reply briefs
due September 28th, 2007.

Specifically, I am reguesting Ohic Edison
to address the arguments concerning the right-cf-way
issue, the easement issue. I am requesting both
parties to keep their comments to only those items

that were mentiocned con the reccrd. No new

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbuz, Ohic (614) 224-9481
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information should be put in these documents
whatsoever. Since I've made that directive, I don't
know that it will be necessgary to file any types of
motions to strike cor what not, but that is totally up
to the parties as to what they do or what they don't
do, but I am very strictly going to adhere to that.
The Commissicn will only consider information that
was put on the record today. WNo new information will
be considered, even though it's filed in that
document .

The process from here is I review the
record. I'll review all the briefs, anything that's
filed, anything that was said here today. I will
draft a document called an Opinion and Order, a
recommendation for the Commission to consider. The
Commigssion meets once a week to consider
recommendations. I don't know what the time frame on
this is. Parties are free to call me and ask me, you
know, where this is on my agenda.

I can say I will try my hardest to get
gomething done by the end of the year, but it's
extremely busy, sc I will try my hardest to do that,
but feel free to give me a reasonable amount of time

to try to draft something and then if you want to

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614} 224-9481
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call me, I can give you a better estimation.

Once the Commission -- they typically
meet a Wednesdays. Once they issue that order on
that Wednesday, there is a 30-day statutory time
frame for parties to file if they disagree with the
Comnission's opinlion. It's a strict, strict time
frame. The Commiggion does not and is not able to
becauge it's statutory, is not able to waive that
time frame. There is also an opportunity to reply.
If there are any questions about process, time
frames, when things are due procedurally, please call
the Commission's legal department and we will put you
in touch with an attorney that will be able to answer
any of those guegtions for you on a procedural basis.

MS. KOLICH: Do you have the number that
should be called?

HEARING EXAMINER PIRIK: The generic
number of the Commission's legal department is
(614)466-3015. Actually, that's the receptionist's
desk on our floor. I would specifically ask -- you
can specifically ask for me and I will be sure that
you get to the right person, if I'm not able to
answer the questions. As the Examiner on a case, I

try to very strictly remove myself from that process,

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, Ohio (614} 224-5481
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other than to answer the questions, vou know, how
long it will be until the order will come out.

I would encourage the parties, even
though we've gone through this very lengthy day, I
will encourage the parties to try to settle this
matter. I would encourage the parties to discuss
with each other the possibility of settlement. I
don't know what else to say about that, cther than I
strongly encourage the companies tc continue to
pursue settlement options in lieu cof a Commission
decision in this case.

That being said, is there anything else
to come before me today? Hearing none, thig case has
been submitted on the record and we are adjourned.

(Thereupon, the proceedings concluded at

7:30 p.m.)

Armstrong & Okey, Inc. Columbus, OChio (614} 224-9481
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CERTIFICATE
T do hereby certify that the foregeing is a
true and correct transcript of the proceedings taken
by me in this matter on Tuesday, August 7, 2007, and

carefully compared with my original stenographic

r%w%c )

sandra D. Kin, Profeé81onal
Reporter and Notary Public
in and for the State of Ohio.

notes.

My Commission Expires May 14, 2012.
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High-voltage transmission right-of-way restrictions : ‘ Page 1 of 1
' EXHIBIT

lomplasnasts

x5

Get Holp With...Safety

g
2
g
3
5

High-voltage transmission right-of-way restrictions

Any:encronchment will crants & hazardous condition. Contact with or arcing of the energized conductors wilt

cauge property damage or serious bodily injury, including death. Other restrictions might apply for specific
situations.

Safaty

OBHA safe-working clearance from a parson or any conductive object to the energized bare wires shall be maintained
at all timas.

500,000 volt (S00-kV)} lines =-=v=ene-mms-e Minimurn 19 feot, in any direction.

345,000 voit (345-kV) Hnes -----—--mcuce Minimum 16 feet, in any direction.

230,000 voit {230-kv) lingg ~~-~-v—--——-- Minimum 13 fest, In any direction.

138,000 volt {138-kV) lines -=--—-~-----~ Minimum 12 feet, in any direction,

115,000 volt (115-kV) lnes —«-ssnrsme-— Minimum 11 feet, in any direction,
;kr_'_za,noﬁ vot (23-kV) tn 69,000 volt (89-kV) lines ---- Minimum 10 faet, In any direction.

‘shou!d N ooimlml Uc prwm 2 prow grounding sysum to prmt indmd shotk Cmstruetm vehlclu operating
near. tmunﬁulon iings shoald also be properly grounded.

Né i -or combustible liquid, substance, or material shall be located within the right-of-way, Prohibited
indlude but are not firmited to: fuel, wood chips, mulch, brush, and tires.

v-umlon
All viigétation on or adjacent to the right-of-way shall be low-growing, compatible spacies {10-foot maximum mature
hiight}

Shru pbntadmrﬁrstmrgy structures {polas, towers, guys, stc.} shall aliow for working area at ground
tevel. duurﬂmrm ot imature gro fwomﬂustrmare.imawwim
L_ sgekatic rﬁdﬁaﬁsmﬂgﬁd&n&smﬂtﬁs&cﬁm. Wﬁdf&

Refer to fort]
Accese
No hgllilnqs,, signs, blllboards, swimming pools, decks, flag posts, sheds, bams, garages, playgrounds, fences, or
otherstructuras shall:-be located within the right-of-way.

Truck and eguipment.nccess to all transmission-line structures shall be provided at all times.
No saptic systems or wefis shall be located within the right-of-way,

Lighting fixtures
Ng Hjhting fixturas shall be located within the right-of-way witliout written approva! from FirstEnergy.

Grading /Excavation
N¢ excavations near Transmission structures (poles, towers, quys, etc.) shall occur without written approval from
FiéstEngrgy.
Ng cliziiges to grade elevations within the right-of-way shall be made without written approval from FirstEnergy.
Kite flythg, modal airplane flying, or simHar activities shafl be prohibited on or near FirstEnergy right-of-way.

St :-nead help?
with your gquastions.

hitps://www firstenergycorp.com/Get_Help_ With/Safety/Real_Estate_and_Transmission/Tr... 7/7/2007

Bl miprim ot £ [ e ks ol > e e e B B e - - e o < fd e oA


https://vrwwfirstenergycorp.com/GetJielpJVith/Srf%5e

Why we pnune trees Page 1 of' 1

Gat Help With...Safety . @

Why we prune tress

To provide safe and reflable alectric service for our customers, treas
must Ye proparly maintained and kept clear of electric power linas.

Traes are  lsuding cawse of slectrical power outages. In fact wheo fress
and pawir ines touch it i a very dangerous situation and may ever be
deadly to anyona in citse proximity.

To help maintain safe, refisble electric service, FirstEnergy's Vegetation
Managameant Program contvols trees, shrubs and brush growing around
our'héﬂiiiu and equipinent ~ including power lines. Every four years or

so0, tra jalitied Nne clearance experts visit your neghboerhosd
*'fookin at may oome n contack electrical conductors.
._.m-—--w-—""" .

If & trée Aseds pruning, the property ovwner is notified - either in

orﬂlmuqhadurum before work is started. An approximate time
frarhe for complation of the work is noted on the card. —

Bmmatury trass and other forms of brush that potentially might come in

congact with slectric lines are removed as well. Vines growing on poles,
guy wikes or other equipmant are cut near the ground. Low growing
shrabs aid omamantal trees are usuafly left undisturbed unless they
hinder accass to power lines or facilitles.

o FHFE WK
L

Still noed healp?
with your questions.

https:ﬂwww.ﬁrstenﬂ'gyoorp.com/Get__Help“WiﬂvSafety#(ﬂintaining_Trees”Near__LinesIW... 7712007
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https://www.firstenergycorp.com/Get_Help3%5eith/Safety/Maintaining_Trees_%5e

Why some trees are removed : Page 1 of 1

Gat Help With...Safety

Why coima traes are retnoved

To provide adequate clesrsnce around distribution power fines, some traes raquire more pruning than others. If a tree
cannotbe prused offectively without significantly impacting its health or shape, it should be removed.

On transrhlssion right-of-ways, clearing, rather than pruning, established trees from the right-of-way reflacts our

continuing commitment to to all of our customers. So long as they do not
cbstruct safa access, some Aow! pesniaty are aliowed to remain n the transmission corridor and provide a viable
habltat for witdiife. =g dg

In cases of tree removal, the property owner is notifled in person or in writing before the work Is dope.

Stil nead help?
with your quastions,

https://www firstenergycorp.com/Get_Help_With/Safety/Maintaining_Trees Near_Lines/W... 7/7/2007
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How trecs are pruned . ragelorl

Get.Halp With...Safaty

How traas ars pruned

Trea care/profussionals under contract to FirstEnergy use "directional” pruning techniques. These techniques were
dwdoplé by the Naticnal Arborist Assoclation and are published by the American National Standards Institute (ANSI).
Direttional pruning is the accepted Industry standard endorsed and promoted by the

and the .

Power Lines Power Lines  Power Lines

"y

Tree before Immediately after 3 years after
pruning pruning pruning

Directiona) pruning removes entire branches and limbs back to the main trunk of the tree, where trees normally shed
them. In thic way, future tree growth is directad away from power lines and weakly attached re-growth is minimized.
Dll'ﬂﬁﬂd'nal pruning takes advantage of strong points in the tree's structure. Branches growing away from electric lines
or facilities are usualiy laft undisturbed, Directional pruning does not harm the free's natural defensa systams and other
natural procasges that protect the tree from decay and aggressive re-sprouting.

Before branches growing near alectric lines are removed, pruning crews evaluate a tre's structure and growth
pattorns. trms also consider the tree species, growth rates common to our satvice aren, proximity to electric fines and
the height and volkage of the lines.

Bonafits of directionaily pruned trees
Directionafly prunad treas may look cdd at first. In the long fun, however, such trees are lass susceptible to pest and

dacay problems and lesy likely to drop branches and cause damage during storms. In fact, compered to other methods
such as tapping, stubbing or pollarding, directional pruning is better for the protection of the tree's health.

Stil: naed healp?
with your quastions.

hitps://www firstenergycorp.com/Get_Help With/Safety/Maintaining_Trees Near Lines/H... 7/7/2007
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Vegetation management contractors
Gat Helpp With...Safuty
Vegetation management contractors

profiess)
devéiop
clude:

s, Our contractors are requi

by FirstEnergy's Fores

Asplungh Tree Expart Company
Asplungh Brush Control
Chandlir Trea Service

Oavay Tree Expert Company
Edwards Trea Service
Hazlett Trau Sarvice

Lewii Trae Sarvice

Mitchiell Land Improvement
Nelson Trae Sarvice

Northaist Service Company
NOVCO

Panil Line Service Incorporated
Trae-Smiths Ing

Traes Inc

Vegetation Managers Inc

York Trae Service

to follow overhaad line clearance

To confirm whather a contractor is working for FirstEnergy, call your FirstEnergy

SHI need help?
with your guestions.

idelines and specifications

Hmﬁnpgv capries out the Vegatstion Management Progratn with the assistance and expertise of contracted tree care
a

try Staff to ensuré proper, professichal service. Vegetatlon mahagernent contractors

Page 1 of'1

O,

hitps:/fwww firstenergycorp.com/Get_Help With/Safety/Maintaining_Trees_Near_Lines/V... 7/7/2007
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Loor

TREE WORK
SCHEDULED

THIS CONCERNS YOUR PROPERTY.

An imperant pact of providing reliable siecinc sarvicts ‘or you
and your neighbors is claarunce belween glaciic wires and
trees,

Treg work 8 Daing scheduted now o halp prevent outagas

ang rélated probtems. Thes g work wit be dure 3 no
rise to you and will ba comglatad by profassionad trom
tratiors using proper arbonsuitucal prunirg practices,

Tha foliowing sork will start after:

Oate S

:. ” Wa reed to prane resis):

Plaase note: Waed oo large te de run theugh tre chipper will
Da st intn manngrable lengihs dnd ol on e prperty.

Trasl unesesbin hruan with a» &PA aporoved herbhicide.

.

"1 Traal seacted species with 2 grawih segulator

For mare inforuikos abeul live work perfosmred by FirstEnergy, visi
oar Webalto at www,firslenergy o
Oy Kghmon » Thoe Myrrongsing Company « Tolide LAS0H - Pona ivwer

FIHIEE A0 KLY

Still need help?

https./fwww firstenergycorp.com/Get_Help With/Safety/Maintaining_Trees_Near_Lines/D...
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2 EXHBIT
; G vap Lot ety

Do Edisorr « Tha Wuminaiing Company * Tokedo Etison
Mat-Ed = Penslet = Perth Power « Jarsey Goniral Power & Ligi

PLEASE COMPLETE AND SIGN THE REVERSE
SIDE OF THIS FORM AND HANG IT ON YOUR
DOOR FOR PICK UP TOMORROW

Same of the trees on your property have grown near the
electric line(s) and require removal and/or pruning.

Ofl g Ea{rsm is
attempting to notify you about performing vegstation clearance
on the power line right-ot-way. This work is being scheduled to
help prevent electric service interruptions to yau and the rest of
our customers supplied by these facilities. This work will be
performed at no expense to you and will be completed by
professional tree contractors using proper aboricultural
practices. -

Ih!e maintenance work intended for your properly is indicated
810w,

@/ Remove Trees. (Large wood remains on site)

E

E Clear Right-of-Way. (Selectively clear tall-growing, wood
plant species within the right-of-way and the oceasional o
right-of-way tree which threatens service.)

D Brush Disposal Method.

Apply Herbicides, (Seleclively apply EPA registered and
approved herbicides to control tall-growing, woody plant
species on the right-of-way.)

L__] Prune Trees.

(<] Other. Please call do discocs wock
‘o be. dope

Secefl (F20) SEH-9083

Work is scheduled to start after: | 2b. 200

FORM 1018 {REV. 01-05)
ID No. 58100431




D Yes, | am the property owner and have read your notice
about right-of-way maintenance.

(Signature)
{Date)

El No, I am not the property owner. Please contact:

(Owner's Name)

{Phone No.)

D I would ilke to discuss the work Indicated on the
reverse side, before it is performed. Please contact me
at ( ) - at the following

day{s) and time(s):

|:| Remarks:

CONTACT INF

Name

Phone No.

@. How will the trees be pruned?

A. When iree pruning is prescribed a method called
"Natural Directional Pruning" is used. This method is
recommended by the International Society of
Aboriculture and the Natlonal Arborists Association as
the most desirable method. The amount pruned from the
powerline depends upon the specles of tree. Fast-grow-
ing trees such as maples, sycamores, wiiows and
locusts must be pruned to achleve greater clearance
distances that slower-growing species llke spruce.
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Akron, Ohio 44333

Patrick Failor 320-315.8034
Transmission Foresiry Services

February 19, 2007

Ms. Helen Dye
2395 Ferguson Road
Mansfield, OH 44906

Dear Ms. Dye:

Based on a site inspection of the property at 2395 Ferguson Road in Mansfield, Ohio, the
Ohio Edison Company has prescribed the removal of incompatible trees and brush located on our
Leaside-Longview, 69kV transmission corridor in order to ensure its safe and reliable operation,
As part of our Transmission Vegetation Management Program, I have instructed the Nelson Tree
Company to remove this vegetation on or after February 26, 2007, according our general work
practices and outlined on the attached work plan and enclosed brochure.

The prepared work plan is specific to your property and has been reviewed by a .
FirstEnergy Forestry Specialist to ensure that it will meet our clearance needs and is in
accordance with the easement rights as recorded in volume 11 page 407 in the Richland County
Recorders Office. ' :

Even though our easements generally provide sufficient rights for the work that is
planned, we want to be certain that you are aware of this work and acknowledge reviewing the
work plan. Therefore, we are requesting that you sign the work plan and return it to our office by
February 26, 2007. This will help us ensure that we have communicated the work plan to you.
We will use the work plan to instruct our contractors, further ensuring your expectations and our
expeotations will be met. The Ohio LEdison - Compeitty would: prefer to have your signed
acknowledgement prior to starting the work. Should you decide not to sign the work plan or
respond by February 26, 2007; the Ohio Edison Company will still proceed with the -work
according to our easement rights noted above and all concessions offered below will become null
and void.

Should you choose to relocate the trees in question, or have a contractor relocate them for
you at your own expense, the work must be completed no later than 6/1/2007. If this is vour
choice, please call me at the number below to discuss this concession.




e ——— T

This letter or its contents and the work performed shall not in anyway limit or change the
rights or privileges granted to The Ohio Edison Company or its successors by any easements
attached to or conveyed o this property and recorded in the county recorders office.

If you have specific questions about the work plan please contact me at
330-315-6934.

Thank you,

bt T Jed

Patrick Failor

Forester

FirstEnergy Transmission Forestry Services
395 Ghent Rd.

Akron, OH 44333

Enclosures

cc:  Rebecca Spach, Forestry Manager
File

Corridor Name: Leaside-Longview  Span: 84EE-115 to 84EE-116
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- Recelved-of The Ohnie, Power Company One .Dollar ($I.00:)
and other good and valuable considerations.of which Levi--E..Hetler
and- his wife May Hetler hereby grant and convey unto-said The
Chlo Power Company, its succesesors and assigns forsver, the right
and easement to erect, :construct and maintain a line consisting
of»eightrpoles‘for!the.transmission:of.eleqtriq energyithereever
for any and all purposee for which eleciric energy is.-now.or may
hereafter be ured, and algo for the transmission of telegraprh and.
telephone linecor lines with all necessary wires, cables, fix—
tures-and-appliances;ﬁbg sald .purnoses, dncluding guy wires,
Btubs, sanchors, and brace poles, through, over and across all

lands from east to west deserihed as follows;. siiuate in the Town-
. Fa , T ——— e

ship of Springfield, County of Richland, and State of Ohio, being

-
g part of the north-west quarter of Section I4, Township 2I,

Range I9, beginning for the same at a point cone hundred (L100)

reds souln  of the north-east corner of said quarter, thence

weat parralkgx,with the narth line, g, sevehteénWﬁundréd

0L vt 7Aore or less, to the east line of land owned
o 4uﬂﬁh

ZQ7bV Eimer Moser,ﬂthenne with said Moser 's sast line to the south.

woPmemigen; als)y with the>r‘

T grantors Premises from the bl
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1ine or ~1nb’ qéggggggg and Southwestern Traction Company, thence

38t with the south lfne of gald The 01eve1and & Southwestern
g

Traction companv to the ﬁast line of said’ quarter, thence south

wlth tha egst line of- said quarter to the place of beginning,

%ith the right of inpre%ﬁ

BONAYLY . appss

n&mad. i
ﬁhigh—W&V on the bOUth thereof

R geimow? \d
to the ahove described premisea,
wires, gtubs, anohors and brace poles shall be placed onlv in
WEEREK“.
fence rows on said pnemises.
A LY
"1m§; right to fell or trim any trees along

.provided further that no guy

/

Bald line ew=FANEy, Whpmever the =@ me may be qgeea”ary in order

to erect, comstruct orf”

Yaf-1920
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tHe eréction of sald’ 1ined shall Pirst vy to the grantor the

oo PR RL VAN A o e 3)'.55"3' i

sum’of ‘Five Hundred Dollars $500 OO) Por the right or easenanm

Ty

herein granted it 15 further provided that the grantee, 1ts

ey e 1 T3t i RS &
T P :

9§ocedsors a assigns shall pay to the granﬁor, his heirs or

s} nerd et ok

g ) “Eésigns any ﬂamage done to crops or fenses in the erection or

maintainance of m id lineg. | | ' | |
IN WITNHSS WHEREOF we have héreﬁnto 591 oﬁr’ﬁahds and

affixed our eseals this :é aav of April 1920.
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State of Ohio, .. o

Richlaqg,County, B88.

Before me a Notarv Puhlic in gnd for said County,

fﬁgxwf

; @ﬁéﬁgg'appeared the ahove nemed, Levi E. Hetler and May Hetrg'

uho” ekmowledged that they did sign the within instrumentao

n the 5
that the same was their free act and deed. ced onlv LR
IN WITNESS, WHEREOF I have hereunto set my hand and ﬂ.
of'f ; - i;-'f s p
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Corridor Name Lfﬁtsl‘af& -/ cAaviced  Voltage ' 60kv___ 138kV___ 345kV _ Other__
v

Plan # ?‘5

Span numbers F4EE-I[S to TYEE —{iL Corridor width 50 -feet.

Property Owner Information [SHADED AREAS TO BE COMPLETED BY PROPERTY OWNER, AS APPLICABLE]

Name _Hd?,q Djz Phone (’ Yiq)

Address 23985 ‘:ua_u_s e Bd Other
Wanstidd, 04 4490

Description of work gn the R/W: The edges of the R/W corridor are marked with orange ribbon and/or double red hash marks.

\/ Remove Tree(s) marked with: 3 Red “X" 3 Ribbon ;BfAll [ncompatible Species located on R/W (4 >26™)
Remove brush (immature wee species): T All Incompatible Species located on B/W O Painted dot O Ribbon

T Tower Centers J Access T Wark Zones T Described as follows:

Control stump sprouts with EPA approved herbicides: O Other

Mechanical Clearing on R/W Caorridor: T Access 3 Work Zones {1 Edge to Edge

1 Described as follows:

Control Brush (immature tree species) with EPA approved herbicides

A Described as follows:

Description of work adjacent to the R/W: The edges of the R/W are marked with orange ribbon and/or double red hash marks.

Remove priority trees {s) marked with: 73 Red “X” O Ribbon (# >26")

3 Described as follows:

Control stump sprouts with EPA approved herbicides: O Other

Disposal of Large Wood (generally 4 inches in diameter and larger): LARGE WOOD WILL BE LEFT ON THE PROPERTY
IN: 0 WHOLE TREE LENGTHS O CUT INTO MANAGEABLE LENGTHS {up to 4-feet long) ALONG THE EDGE OF THE
R/W, Disposal or use of all such wood is the tree owner’s responsibility, unless otherwise noted and approved.

K.REMOVE WOOD FROM PROPERTY (FirstEnergy Approval Required }

Disposal of small branches: After a tree is a removed, the limbs and branches will be windrowed in piles at the edge ofthe R/W. [n
maintained areas where equipment is accessible, limbs may be run through a chipper and O dispersed on or adjacent to the R/'W or
hauled away.

Property Owner Requests:

First Energy Approval
Required:

A FirstEnergy representative will review the above-described request(s). It is FirstEnergy's goal to cooperate with landowners, provided that such coeperation does not
compromise our responsibility 1o provide all of our customers with safe and reliable electrical service. I your request does not conflict with this duty, and it is within the
parameters of our work in FirstEnergy's judgment, we will proceed as you have requested without any lurther correspondence. If, however, the request can nol be met, then
a representative from FirstEnergy or our contractor will contact you.

1 HAVE READ THE ABOVE WORK PLAN AND UNDERSTAND THAT ALL VEGETATION CLEARING WORK WILL BE DONE AT NO COST TO ME. ]
FURTHER UNDERSTAND THAT THIS DOCUMENT DOES NOT SERVE TO MODIFY OR IAPAIR ANY RIGHTS GRANTED (N FIRSTENERGY 'S
EASEMENTS OR COMPARABLE REAL ESTATE DOCUNENTS.

Date l‘/Z/o7 W.P. Name: 7;;[5{!(/[]} .
Qest~S,

Landowner Acknowledgement (Please sign)
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OBJECTIVE
The objective of all work covered by these documents is to maintain safe, reliable and

economical electric service, through effective line clearance and satisfactory public

relations,

SCOPE OF SERVICES
The right-of-way shall be free of all vegetative obstructions which interfere with the
construction, operation, maintenance and repair of the electric facilities. The Contractor’s
work is described in detail and shall be completed in conformance with these

specifications and all other provisions of the contract documents.

GENERAL POLICY STATEMENT
This contract will be under the direct snpervision of the contracting agency or its
authorized representatives. FirstEnergy, at its sole discretion may make changes altering,
adding to, or reducing the extent of the Work. Such changes shall be initiated by written
order of FirstEnergy and Contractor shall submit the proposed cost or credit to
FirstEnergy for any changes in the Work within 15 working days after receipt of the
written order for FirstEnergy’s approval. Such changes to the Work shall not proceed

without FirstEnergy’s approval.

The Contractor shall furnish competent supervision as required, and may designate a
Supervisor as the Contractor’s representative in all manners relating to the work to be
performed. The Contractor shall have full responsibility for the work and good conduct of
its employees. Directions and instructions shall be given to such employees by the

Contractor or its representatives, and in no circumstances by FirstEnergy or its

representatives.

A copy of the FirstEnergy Vegetation Management Specifications shall be given to every
crew before starting work on any project and Contractor and the Contract Supervisor
shall go over the FirstEnergy Vepetation Management Specification with every crew

member prior to starting work under any project.



CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE STAFFING
The Contractor shall keep and be able to provide to FirstEnergy a list of employees

working on FirstEnergy property including name, classification and home phone of ali

employees.

When projects have begun there will be sufficient personnel and equipment working on
that project to maintain a presence at all times until the job is completed unless otherwise

approved by the FirstEnergy Representative.

REPLACEMENT OF CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEES
The Contractor shall employ personnel qualified to perform the work. If a FirstEnergy
Representative determines Contractor’s employee to be unsatisfactory, the Contractor
shall replace this employee immediately. This does not require the Contractor to

terminate the employment of any employee replaced.

IDENTIFICATION OF CONTRACTOR’S EMPLOYEES AND EQUIPMENT
All Contractor persennel shall have photo identification that includes the employee name,

company and the Contractor’s office telephone number.

All vehicles utilized for work under this specification shall be clearly marked with

Contractor’s name or logo.

APPEARANCE OF CONTRACTOR’S EMPLOYEES AND EQUIPMENT
It shall be Contractor’s responsibility to provide employees which are neat and orderly.
Contractor’s equipment shall be maintained in a safe, clean and satisfactory working
condition to keep downtime to a minimum. Charges shall cease for any labor andfor
equipment that becomes unproductive by incapacitated equipment. Charges will resume

when equipment is restored to its normal aperating condition.



STORM EMERGENCY WORK
Throughout the term of the contract it may become necessary for the Contractor to assist
FirstEnergy in providing emergency tree clearing services. The Contracior shall provide

telephone numbers in order to be reached on a 24-hour basis.

EMERGENCY CALL OUT
In the event of an emergency, including but not limited to a storm, First Energy shall
have the right to direct the Contractor to refocate crews working in the system to areas
where they are needed, as a result of the emergency. All requests for line clearance tree
crews to be released to another utility for storm work (or any other reason) shall be

approved by FirstEnergy, prior to relocation of any crews.

When severe winds, ice storms, or other conditions require emergency assistance, the
Contractor shall provide necessary labor and equipment within 45 minutes of receiving
the catl-out request from FirstEnergy. Charges for call-out work will begin when the crew
reporis to the FirstEnergy reporting location and will end when the crew is released by
FirstEnergy. The Contractor shall maintain equipment, materials and supplies in
preparedness for storm or emergency work and provide emergency assistance in the

manner as set forth by FirstEnergy.

COMMUNICATION BETWEEN CONTRACTOR AND UTILITY
All Contractor field supervisors shall provide a mobile communication system that will
enable the FirstEnergy representative to contact them regarding both routine and

emergency issues. This system shall be capable of transmitting and receiving

communications.

CONTRACTOR COMPLIANCE
The Contractor shail review assigned work in progress to ensure compliance with
clearance requirements, work standards, planned work procedures, and efficient
utilization of personnel, equipment, iools, and material. Contractor personnel shall be

properly trained to perform the work proficiently and safely so as to comply with all



applicable laws, regulations, and local ordinances. Contractor shall adhere to the

requirements and intent of this Specification which requires that the necessary forms and

reports are properly prepared and processed.

COMPLAINT RESOLUTION
The Contractor shall make every effort to contact the customer within 48 hours after a
claim is turned in to FirstEnergy. The Contractor shall make every effort to satisfactorily
settle, within a reasonable time any loss, damage, or liability after it arises or occurs for
which the Contractor is responsible under these specifications. A written report of the
claim and settlement shall be submitted within one week of settlement as directed to do

so by a FirstEnergy representative. (Exhibit 1)

DAMAGES AND UNPLANNED QUTAGES CAUSED BY CONTRACTORS
ACTIONS
The Contracior will be billed by FirstEnergy for any unplanned outages resulting from
the Contractor’s actions, including the cost incurred by FirstEnergy to repair facilities

that are damaged by the Contractor’s negligent action.

The Contractor shall do all things necessary or expedient io properly protect any and all
parallel, converging or intersecting lines, joint line poles, highways and any and all
property of others from damage. In the event that damage occurs in the course of the
work, the Contractor shall, at its own expense, restore any of all such damaged property
immediately to as good a state as before such damage occurred. The Contractor shall

report the outcome to FirstEnergy as directed to do so by a FirstEnergy representative.

In case of power line flash, interruption, or damage FirstEnergy shall be notified
immediately. If a tree should contact a subtransmission or transmission line, the

Contractor should not remove the tree from the conductor until directed to do so by a

FirstEnergy representative.



DAMAGED ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT NOT CAUSED BY CONTRACTOR’S
ACTIONS
Damaged electncal equipment (for example: broken crossarms, broken insulators, loose
guy wires, leaking transformers, etc.), unusual vegetative conditions, or unsafe electrical

conditions shall be reported to FirstEnergy.

TRAFFIC CONTROL
The Contractor shall follow all appropriate Federal, State and Local traffic control laws
and procedures while performing any work under this specification. The Contractor shall

provide safe and effective work areas and warn, control, protect and expedite vehicular

and pedestrian traffic.

GUARDS AND PROTECTIVE DEVICES
The Contractor shall provide and keep the necessary guards and protective devices at
locations where work is being performed to prevent accidents to the public or damage to

the property of FirstEnergy or the Public

SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROTECTION TO PROPERTY

The Contractor shall plan and conduct the work to adequately safeguard all persons and

property from injury.

The Contractor shall take the necessary precautions to render the Work secure in order to
decrease the probability of accident from any cause and to avoid delay in completion of
Work. The Contractor shall use proper safety appliances and provide first aid treatment
and ambulance for emergency treatment of injuries and shall comply with all applicable

Federal, State and Local Laws, rules and regulations with regard to the safe performance

of the work.



SCHEDULING
The Contractor shall schedule and report daily and annual work, coordinate and assign

labor, equipment, tools and material required for efficient and timely completion of

assigned work.

Work locations of all crews must be reported to the respective FirstEnergy office before

8:00am each day or as directed by an authorized FirstEnergy representative.

The scheduling of all projects is the Contractor’s responsibility except in cases of critical
need as determined by FirstEnergy. FirstEnergy may, at its discretion, require that

specific sites be completed in order to maintain service reliability.

PROGRESSION OF WORK
The Contractor shall work progressively along the main circuit feeder from the substation

and shall complete all work in the circuit before starting work on another circuit.

LANDOWNER NOTIFICATION
Except in outage situations or emergency restoration, the Contractor shall make
reasonable attempts to notify all landowners or others having jurisdiction, prior to doing
work, unless such notification has been attained and furnished to the Contractor in
writing by FirstEnergy. Upon request the contractor shall provide proof of notification for
removal and or application of a FirstEnergy approved herbicide or tree growth regulator
to brush or trees that interfere or could interfere with conductors. For all work performed

in Pennsylvania the Property Owner’s Contact Form is to be used as proof of notification.

(Exhibit 2)

PROCEDURE FOR REFUSALS AND SKIPS AND INTERRUFTION OF
ELECTRIC SERVICE
When work is refused or limited in such a manner as to not allow prescribed clearances in

accordance with the FirstEnergy Vegetation Management Specification, the Contractor



shall not perform any work on the property until the refusal is resolved, The Contractor
shall notify FirstEnergy in writing within ten working days.

FirstEnergy will attempt to resolve work refusals within 60 days or before Contractor
relocates to another area (greater than 15 miles from reporting location). When work
refusals are not resolved within 60 days or before Contractor relocates to another area
(greater than 15 miles from reporting location) only travel time to complete refusal work

will be paid on a Time and Material basis.

When consent for herbicide application is refused or when an area is intentionally

skipped, the Contractor shall notify FirstEnergy promptly in writing.

The following information is to be provided for work refusals and herbicide refusals: 1)
name and address of property owner refusing or owner of area skipped, 2) when and by
whom the request was made including the nature of the request, 3) the reason for the
refusal or skip, 4) the location of the refusal or skip in relation to FirstEnergy facilities, 5)
a description of the type and amount of work which needs to be performed, 6) any other
background information which may be of assistance in determining the location of the

property owner, and 7) the nature of refusal or possible solutions. (Exhibit 3)

When it is necessary to interrupt electric service due to the hazardous condition of the
vegetation the Contractor shall notify FirstEnergy promptly in writing. FirstEnergy will
attempt to schedule the interruption of electric service within 60 days or before
Contractor relocates to another area (greater than 15 miles from reporting location).
When the interruption of electric service is not scheduled within 60 days or before
Contractor relocates to another area (greater than 15 miles from reporting location) only

travel time io complete the work will be paid on a Time and Material basis.

RECORD KEEPING
The Contractor shall complete weekly timesheets supplied by FirstEnergy for all work
completed during the previous week. The timesheets are to be submitted by the following

Tuesday moming to the Regional Forestry Office. When filling out the weekly
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timesheets, the Contractor shall refer to the Instructions for Filling out the FirstEnergy

Weekly Timesheets. (Exhibit 4)

For recording purposes, a tree qualified for “tree pruned” status shall be defined as being
a plant with a central trunk that is six inches (6"} in diameter at breast height (dbh).
Breast height shall be 4.5 feet above ground level. Multiple trunks originating from the
same common root crown shall be considered as one (1) tree. The trunk with the largest

diameter will be considered to be the size of the tree.

DISTRIBUTION CLEARING ZONE
The degree and type of tree clearance required for electric lines to function effectively is
dependent on the voltage of the conductor, the type of tree, its growth rate and branching
habit.
The distribution clearing zone is defined as a corridor measured at a distance of 15°
(fifteen feet) on either side of the pole line or to the established large tree edge,
whichever is greater in width. Emphasis is to be placed on controiling all incompatible
vegetation within this clearing zone. All incompatible vegetation overhanging the
clearing zone corridor shall be pruned back to the main stem. In cases where
incompatible vegetation is not controlled, such as in maintained lawn areas, vegetation
shall be pruned following directional pruning methods and as further defined in the
current ANSI 300 Standards and Amendments. Pruning shall be done in such a manner to
achieve a minimum of four years of clearance from FirstEnergy primary conductors
based on tree species and growing conditions. In cases where four years of clearance is
unattainable 12’ (twelve feet) of clearance around primary conductors shall be achieved.

{(Refer to Procedure for Refusals and Skips page 9.)

Regardless of tree species, structures with fuses or disconnects must have all woody

vegetation cleared within an eight foot (8') radius of the fuse/disconnect side of the

structure.

When clearing vegetation for an individual circuit on a pole or structure, the
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Contractor must clear for all FirstEnergy circuits on that pole or structure.

When pruning for overhang clearance, dead or siructurally weak limbs which could fail

or blow into the conductor shall be removed.

Priority trees located in the inspection zone, which is the area between 15’ (fifieen feet)
and 20’ (twenty feet) from pole line, shall be maintained as directed by an authorized
FirstEnergy representative, to mitigate obvious hazards to FirstEnergy facilities. Priority
trees located outside the inspection zone shall be addressed as directed by the FirstEnergy

representative.

SECONDARY VOLTAGES CLEARING ZONE
The degree and type of iree clearance required for secondary voltages to function
effectively is dependent on the construction of the conductor, the type of tree, its growth

rate and branching habit.

Secondary circuits include all facilities between the transformer pole and the final pole on
the line. Services are defined as the span from the last pole to the customer’s service

entrance.

Open Wire Secondary Conductors

Branches that ate contacting bare open wire secondary conductors are to be pruned to
achieve 4’ (four feet) of clearance and/or eliminate mechanical strain, displacement or
abrasion of the conductor. Parent branches and the main tree trunk may remain in the
secondary clearing zone providing that the branches and the tree are structurally sound
and not mechanically straining, displacing or in direct contact with the conductors.

Open Wire and Triplex Services and Triplex Secondary Conductors

Branches that are contacting open wire and triplex services and triplex secondary
conductors that are creating mechanical strain, displacement, or abrasion shall be pruned
to eliminate the strain, displacement or abrasion of the conductor. Large limbs in excess
of 3-inches in diameter that are contacting the conductor and are causing mechanical
strain, displacement or abrasion shall be reported in writing to the Forestry

Representative.
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Street Light Wire and Luminaries
This work is only required as directed by an authorized FirstEnergy representative. When

required, branches contacting street light wires shall be pruned to provide at least one
foot (1°) of clearance. The clearing zone for street light luminaries extends five feet (5°)
from, and 360 degrees around the luminary horizontally. The area below the luminary

shall be cleared in the manner of a cone with 45-degree sides.

TRANSMISSION CLEARING ZONE
The transmission clearing zone corridor will be identified and its information given to the
Contractor prior to commencement of corridor maintenance activities. Emphasis is to be
placed on controlling all incompatible vegetation within this clearing zone. All
incompatible vegetation overhanging the clearing zone corridor shall be pruned back to
the main stem, In cases where incompatible vegetation is not controlled, vegetation shall
be pruned following directional pruning methods as defined in the ANSI 300 Standards
and Amendments. Pruning for the transmission corridor is dependent on the voltage of
the conductor and shall be done in such a manner to achieve a minimum of five years of

clearance. In cases where five years of clearance is unattainable the following clearances

shall apply:
o Transmission lines operating at 23kV —/69kV shall be cleared 15° (fifteen feet) from

the conductor.
s Transmission lines operating at 115kV — 138kV shall be cleared 25” (twenty-five
feet) from the conductor.

» Transmission lines operating above 138kV shali be cleared 30° (thirty feet) from the

conductor.

CLEARING ZONE CORRIDOR CLEARANCE FOR NEW DISTRIBUTION,
SUBTRANSMISSION, OR T&MSSI_(){JQQ_N_PUCTORSH

On new construction, the clearing zone corridor shall be cieared to th_e:s;]_dgm Jand under
the conditions as stated on the detailed property and provision list furnished by

FirstEnergy, or as otherwise instructed by FirstEnergy.
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Trees dangerous to the conductor located on the clearing zone corridor and those adjacent

to the clearing zone corridor shall be removed as directed by FirstEnergy.

All vegetation that is removed shall be cut as closely to the ground line as possible and

shall not exceed a height of 3” (three inches) above the ground level unless otherwise

directed by FirstEnergy.

Trees, brushwood, and slash shall be placed or disposed of as designated by the detailed
property and provision list or as directed by FirstEnergy. Designated trees are to be left in
lengths as long as possible, preferably whole tree lengths and shall be placed in neat piles
with the tree lengths paralle] to and along the edge of the clearing zone corridor and

separated from other piles or wind rows.

Slash and brushwood generated from the clearing operation shall be placed in piles or
windrows along the edge of the clearing zone corridor and separated from other piles
unless otherwise directed by FirstEnergy. Any disposal of brush, wood, slash, logs or

trees shali be in accordance with the laws and regulations of the appropriate governing

authority.

TREE PRUNING METHODS
All pruning, both initial and re-pruning, shall be done in accordance with modern
arboniculture standards using the current ANSI 300 Standards and Amendments.
Directional pruning is the preferred method of line clearance pruning. Whenever

possible, the Contractor shall obtain clearance in this manner.
The drop crotch method will be used.

Pruning cuts are to be made back to the main stemn; or to a lateral branch which is at least

one third the diameter of the portion being removed. Limbs shall not be stubbed off at the
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edge of the clearing limits. Pruning shall be done in a manner that will promote growth

away from the power lines.

Dead branches and structurally weak limbs overhanging primary conductors shall be

removed.

A minimum number of cuts shall be utilized to achieve required clearances.

Where practical, cuts should be primarily restricted to large diameter branches, made well

within the crown. Shaping through the use of small diameter branches in the outer crown

shall be avoided.

Cuts are to be made outside the branch bark ridge leaving no stub.
Precautions shall be taken to avoid stripping or tearing of bark when cutting limbs.
All severed twigs, branches and limbs shall be removed from pruned trees.

The practices known as “shearing”, “stubbing”, pollarding, or “rounding over” shall be
avoided. Exceptions to drop crofch and directional pruning techniques shall be used only

when directed to do so by the FirstEnergy representative.

TREE REMOVAL
A woody plant six inches (6”) in diameter at four and one-half feet (4.5°) above the
ground (dbh) will be considered for purposes of recording a tree. All growths less than

this measurement will be considered brush.

Trees that are expected to be removed are those that are:
» Dead or defective which constitute a hazard to the conductor.
» Trees that have fast growth rates or trees that cannot be pruned for effective

conductor clearance.
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o Immature trees, generally classified as brush.

¢ Trees that are overhanging the primary conductors and are unhealthy or structurally
weak.

¢ All priority trees located adjacent to the subtransmission and transmission clearing
zone carridor that are leaning towards the conductors, are diseased, or are
significantly encroaching the clearing zone corridor.

» All incompatible trees that are located within the clearing zone corridor.

All trees removed shall be cut flush with the ground line except where other treatment is
designated by mutual agreement with property owners or public authorities. All live

stumps (except conifers) shall be treated with a FirstEnergy approved herbicide.

BRUSH REMOVAL
Brush that is interfering with the conductor or may grow to such height that will interfere

with the conductor shall be removed and or treated with a herbicide.
The Contractor shall remove all incompatible brush and shall not prune brush.

All tree and brush removals shall be cut as low as practical, no higher than three

inches(3") from and parallel to the ground line.

Mowing of brush on the clearing zone corridor by use of a hydroaxe, brushog, etc., is
only permitted with prior approval of an authorized FirstEnergy representative. Mowing
shall be performed as directed by FirstEnergy. Every effort shall be made, during

mowing, to preserve patches of desirable vegetation.

HERBICIDE BRUSH CONTROL
The contractor shall use the proper and appropriate herbicide treatment in accordance
with the FirstEnergy Guide to Vegetation Control with Herbicides. FirstEnergy expects
all incompatible vegetation on the corridor be controlled, with the cut surface treatment

being the minimum chosen treatment. In cases where a landowner will not allow at least
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the minimum treatment, the contractor will consider this a refusal and provide the

required refusal information to the FirstEnergy representative, as described in this

specification.

Unless otherwise specified, the herbicides used shall be provided by FirstEnergy. All

herbicides, shall be applied by the Contractor in accordance with the manufacture’s label

instructions.

'The Contractor shall meet the following requirements when applying herbicides: Hold a
current and appropriate pesticide application license from the appropriate State
Department of Agriculture or its approved equivalent. Conform to all state, local and
federal laws governing the herbicide used. Apply the herbicide under the direct

supervision of a certified applicator and in accordance with the herbicide label

instructions.

Herbicide applications are to be made in a manner assuring restriction of applied material

to the target.

Areas of treated clearing zone showing evidence of incomplete coverage shall be
re-treated immediately. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to
inspect the treated clearing zone within one month of treatment and retreat

those areas which have received incomplete application.

Areas requiring re-treatment will be determined by inspection during the year

following the treatment and shall be done at no additional cost to FirstEnergy. Re-
treatment will be with the original herbicide solution and will be applied according to the
guideline in effect at the time of initial treatment. An authorized FirstEnergy
representative will determine the necessity for re-treatment. The general criteria for

determination of re-treatment is reduction of brush density and reduction in average

height of brush.
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All areas left untreated by the Contractor or that do not pass inspection shall be treated

during the next treatment season at no cost to FirstEnergy.

All stems of treated brush that are within five (5’) of distribution voltages and that are
within fifteen feet (15) of the lines that are 23kV or above shall be cut. This shall apply

to all herbicide treatments and to locations where the conductor height is less than one-

hundred feet (100°).

All areas that have conductor height of one-hundred feet (100") or more at
center line must be approved by FirstEnergy before the area is left untreated.
In areas where conductor height is less than twenty-five feet (25"), all brush

over five feet (5') must be treated and removed on 23kV and above.

The Contractor shall furnish all mixing and application equipment and shall be
responsible for transporting, storing, handling, mixing and applying herbicides used in
the immediate current operation. The Contractor shall supply the liquid carrier for the

herbicides unless it is made available by FirstEnergy.

Empty herbicide containers shall be triple rinsed by the Contractor using the

manufacture’s label instructions unless refillable/returnable storage containers are being

used.

The contractor shall dispose of all empty herbicide containers by following all local, state

and federal requirements.

HERBICIDE APPLICATION METHODS & TREATMENT
Herbicide application methods and treatment shall follow the guideline and be in

accordance with the FirstEnergy Guide for Vegetation Control with Herbicides.
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REGULATION OF TREE GROWTH
Tree growth regulation shall be done in accordance with The Guide for Tree Growth

Regulation found in The FirstEnergy Guide For Vegetation Control with Herbicides.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
On clearing zone corridorss, a ten-foot-wide (107) access lane shall be cut and treated with

herhicide, to allow travel from structure to structure, unless otherwise specified by

FirstEnergy.

All brush and trees shall be cleared away from all structures at the ground line to a

distance of three feet (3’) unless otherwise specified by FirstEnergy.

When tree houses are observed in trees that require pruning for clearance from the
conductors, the Contractor shall contact the property owner, explain the hazard, and offer
to remove the tree house. If consent is given, the contractor shall remove the tree house at

that time and prune the tree to the proper clearance distance or remove the tree if consent

is given.

If the property owner refuses to allow the contractor to remove the tree house, the
contractor shali prune the tree for line clearance at that time and notify FirstEnergy by
phone. While clearing the tree from the conductor, the contractor shall obtain the
property owner’s name, address and phone number and reason for refusal. The contractor
is also to notify the FirstEnergy representative promptly in writing, giving property
owner’s name, address, phone number and reason for refusal. A copy of the written

notice is to be sent to the Claims Department, 76 South Main St. Akron, OH 44308.

Trees that are near conductors and show signs of being climbed or being used in
children’s play require special attention. The contractor observing this situation shatl
contact the property owner, explain the hazard, and offer to remove the tree. If the

property owner consents to having the tree removed, it should be removed immediately.
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If the property owner refuses to allow the tree to be removed, the contractor shall prune
the tree for line clearance at that time, and notify the FirstEnergy representative by phone.
While clearing the tree from the conductor, obtain the property owner’s name, address
and phone number, and reason for refusal. The contractor is also to notify the FirstEnergy
representative promptly in writing, giving property owner’s name, address, phone
number, and reason for refusal. A copy of the written notice is to be sent to the Claims

Department, 76 South Main Street, Akron, Ohio 44308.

Down and span guys are to be freed of weight, strain or displacement because of pressure
caused by contact with tree parts, particularly from fast-growing trees. Vines growing on
poles, towers, and guy wires will be cut at ground line and as high as can be safely
reached from the ground. Stumps of vines will be treated using an approved cut surface
treatment. Notification to the property owner shall be given prior to removing cultivated
vines. All noxious vines should be removed, as directed by the designated FirstEnergy
representative, from poles, towers, and guys and treated with an appropriate herbicide. If

vines are entwined in electrical equipment, FirstEnergy shall be notified.

Communication conductors owned by FirstEnergy shall be maintained to the same
clearance as secondary voltages, or as directed by the designated FirstEnergy

representative. Allowance shall be made for wire sag and horizontal displacement due to

extreme weather conditions and high winds.

Antennas, their supports or other objects attached to or in a tree such that their placement
or maintenance has or would cause someone to be in close proximity to the conductor are

to be reported promptly in writing to FirstEnergy.

DEBRIS & WOOD DISPOSAL
The Contractor shall leave the wood that is too large to be chipped in handling lengths for

the property owner to cut into final firewood lengths. The Contractor shall communicate
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this to the property owner at the time of notification. The Contractor shall document this

notification as directed by FirstEnergy.

The Contractor shall satisfactorily dispose of all tree parts that are pruned or removed in a
manner that is acceptable to the landowner and FirstEnergy. Accepted FirstEnergy
methods of disposal include windrowing, chipping, lopping, and stacking. Lopping must
be below knee height. Brush and logs must not be left in any waterway or within 15 feet
of the centerline of any distribution line or more than 10 feet from the edge of a
transmission line clearing zone. Debiis from clearing zone areas that are adjacent to a

road shall be kept on the edge of the clearing zone away from the edge of the road.

Debris that is generated from emergency work, where tree clearing is required, is to be
left in a reasonably safe manner. Under these conditions an Emergency Work door card
(form 441) is 10 be left for the property owner. Situations may occur that require debris

generated by emergency work to be cleaned up, the work shall be done at the direction of

FirstEnergy.

WORK SITE APPEARANCE UPON COMPLETION OF WORK
Work sites shall be left in a condition equal to that which existed prior to the

commencement of the Contractor’s operations.

All Contractor-generated trash, including empty drinking cups, lunch papers, oil

containers, cigarette butts etc. must be properly disposed of and not left on site.

WORK INSPECTION
FirstEnergy has the responsibility for inspecting and approving work performed under
these specifications. The exercise of this responsibility by FirstEnergy Forestry shali not
lessen or relieve the Contractor from responsibility under this agreement. The purpose of

this inspection is to ensure specification compliance. Payment will be withheld for areas
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that cannot be satisfactorily cleared and will not be included in payment for the overall

project.

An authorized FirstEnergy representative shall make a final inspection of the completed
work, to insure all line clearance work has been completed in accordance with the line
clearance specifications. FirstEnergy will inspect and communicate findings to the
Contractor, in a form that is acceptable to both parties, within 30 days of receiving

notification that work 1s completed.

Any work not done to FirstEnergy’s satisfaction and acceptance shall be redone by the
Contractor at no additional cost to FirstEnergy. All re-work done at the Contractor’s
expense shall not be counted as work units. The Contractor shall complete all rework
within 30 days of receiving an inspection form and/or map from the FirstEnergy
representative. (Exhibit 5) A penalty may be assessed for re-work that is not completed

within 30 days of receiving notice from FirstEnergy.

A 10 percent penalty, calculated based on the percentage of work not completed, will be

assessed to each project not completed on time.
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DEFINITIONS

“As Required”, “As Permitted”, “Approved”, Acceptable”, “Satisfactory”, ot similar

terms shall mean by or to FirstEnergy.
Bidder: Party or parties submitting a proposal for the specified work.

Brush: Incompatible vegetation with trunk diameter less than six (6”) in diameter at

breast height.

Contract: the agreement, between FirstEnergy and Contractor, including the specification,

insurance requirements, and any bond, together with any other material specifically

incorporated therein.

Contractor: The party or parties entering into this contract with FirstEnergy for work.

Contractor’s Representative: Contractor’s employee who is directly responsible for the

work.

Control: Means that all incompatible vegetation must be removed with a herbicide or be

removed mechanically along with a herbicide application to eliminate the root system.
Critical Tree: Any tree identified as a cost effective candidate for removal, growing under
or very near primary conductors, that will require a majority of the canopy to be affected
in order to achieve four years clearance. Typically this is a cycle busting tree, which
means it may interfere with the primary conductors within four years.

Days: Unless otherwise specified shall mean calendar days.

FirstEnergy’s Representative: An authorized representative of the utility as specified in

the Contract and in the “Terms and Conditions Labor Services-Forestry”.
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Growth Regulator Applicatton Work: The application of chemicals used to retard the
growth of trees and shrubs that may require climbing or the use of an aerial lift truck

within 10 feet of energized facilities.

Hazard Materials and Hazard Wastes: Any material defined as such in any local, state or

federal rule, regulation, law or code in the location in which the work is performed.

Incompatible Vegetation: Is defined as all vegetation that will grow tall enough to

interfere with overhead electric facilities.

Inspection Zone: Is defined as area between 15’ (fifteen feet) and 20’ (twenty feet) from

the pole line.
Maintain: Ensuring line reliability.

Maintained Lawn Area: Defined as an area where conductor(s) are located, typically
residential, where the area is covered with grass that is kept closely mowed and/or areas
where the landscape is being cultivated. Cultivated landscapes may include flower beds,
hedge rows and landscape plantings. This does not include wooded, agricultural,

industrial sites, or areas along county and state highways.

Non-Maintained Lawn Area: Defined as a rural setting where the area covered with grass
is Not kept closely mowed and/or areas where the landscape is Not being cultivated,

Includes wooded, agricultural, industrial sites and areas along county and state highways.

Notification: To inform and let landowners know that tree work will be performed on the
property for power line clearance. Notification may take place using door card, personal

contact, or other approved methods.

Priority Tree(s): Tree(s) located adjacent to the clearing zone corridor that are either

dead, diseased, declining, severely leaning or significantly encroaching the clearing zone.
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Specification: FirstEnergy’s requirement including these general conditions, the specific

conditions, and other documents specified under the contents page.

Structurally Weak Limbs: Is defined as limbs that have narrow angle of attachment,

included bark, co-dominant stems of equal diameter or any other structural condition that

may cause limbs to fail.

Subcontractor: The party or parties entering into a subcontract with Contractor or another

subcontractor to perform a portion of the work covered by this contract.

Work: Labor, material, equipment, and all requirements specified.
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FIGURES

The following pages contain examples of various clearing distances, requirements and

directional pruning.

Figure 1. Street Light Luminaire Clearing Requirements

45° 45°

REMOVE ALL BRANCHES
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[

Figure 2. Natural Target Pruning
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curs. Wound dressings do rior stop tor.

26



Figure 3. Removing Leader on Young Trees
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Figure 5. Primary Distribution Clearing Zone, 15 Feet

Figure 6a. Secondary Distribution Clearing Zone, 4 feet

Open Three Wire
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Figure 6b. Secondary Distribution Clearing Zone, 4 feet
Triplex

* Transmission Clearing Zone Corridor will be identified prior te start of maintenance activities.
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Figure 8. Transmission Pruning Clearance 115kv — 138kv, 25 feet

TR

* Transmission Clearing Zone Corridor will be identified prior to start of maintenance activities.
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Figure 10. Example of Directional Pruning (2 diagrams)
Clearance Required - diagram 1

or

4 yeans of ¢learsnce
12 ]

Continuation of Figure 10. Example of Directional Pruning (2 diagrams)

Appearance Of Tree Pruned For Clearance Using Directional Pruning - diagram 2
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Figure 11. Example of Directional Pruning (2 diagrams)

Clearance Rerquired - Diagram 1

dyears of cfearancz o1 12"

Continued Example of Directiona! Pruning

Appearance Of Tree Pruned For Clearance Using Directional Pruning When Tree is
Under Line — Diagram 2
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Storms, 6

Stubbing, 14

Stumps, 15
Subtransmission, 7, 13
Supervision, 4, 16

Traffic, &
Traffic Control, 8

Transmission, 7. 12, 15, 27, 28

Trash, 21

T

Tree, 6, 7, 10, 13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21, 23
Tree House, 18

Tree Pruned, 10

Tree Removal, 23

Trees, 11. 13, 14, 15, 18, 19, 20, 23, 25

v

Vegetation, 4, 9, 11. 12, 13, 16, 18, 23
Vegetation Management, 4, 9
Vehicle lane, 18

Vines, 19

w
Waterway, 20
Wood, 13,20

Z

Zone, 11, 12, 13, 15, 16, 17, 18, 20, 23, 26, 27, 28

34



FirstEnergy Corp.

Exhibit 1

PROPERTY OWNER CLAIM AND SETTLEMENT

FORM 1014 {10-00) DATE CLAIM RECEIVED

iD NO. 58193111

NAME PHONE NQ, CIRGUIT NQ.
ADDAESS ciTY STATE 1P CODE

NATURE OF GLAIM

CONTRACTOR NAME

DATE RESOLVED

RESQLVED BY

FOLLOW UP BY

DATE

COMMENTS
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FirstEnergy Corp. EXHIBIT 3
FORESTRY WORK REFUSAL FORM
FORM 418 (REV. 11-00)
ID NO. 58057163
CIRCUIT / LINE NAME FOLE NO.
0
PROPERTY DWNER NAME HOME PHONE NO. WORK PHONE NO.
ADDRESS STATE 2IF CODE
FACILITIES INVOLVED
SECONDARY DISTRIBUTION TRANSMISSION
] POLE TOPOLE [] SERVICE NRT) 1 3e O 23kv ] 3dkv J e9kv [3 t38kv [ 3a5kV

WORK REQUIRED

REASON(S} FOR REFUSAL

ORIGINAL GONTRACTOR CONTACT DATE
CONTRACTOR SUPERVISOR DATE
FIRSTENERGY REPRESENTATIVE DATE

ACTION REQUIRED

WORK AUTHORIZED

DATE
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FirstEnergy Gorp.

WORK INSPECTION REPORT
FORM 1051 (12-01)
ID N, 58169241

Exhibit 5

,ums INSPECTED CONTRACTOR CIRCUIT
INSFECTED BY CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIVE
SIGNATURE
THISCIRCUITIS % COMPLETE AND READY FOR INSPECTION
CIBCUIT COMPLETICN DATE |NG. OF SPANS NEEDING RE-WORK {Go Backs) NO. OF REFUSALS TURNED IN SINGE LAST INSPEGTION
COMMENTS
DATE FORWARDED TO GONTRAGTOR DATE REWORK COMPLETED FINAL INSPECTION DATE

SEE ATTACHED LIST OF GO-BACKS AND MAP
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Vegetation Management Expertise

’ nergyb k ng distance, high-voliage
transmission lines provide slectricity to
cdistribution:systems serving 4.4 million
au&-tamars,; and serve as vilal links with

Tran smission rights-of-way
ao::rﬂor widlths baryacaordmg to ihe voliage

: rsfréqu :' y if neoessary
pbréﬁéssioné! vsggla!‘fon management crews
apply vegelation management tschniques fo
prévent freés within the rights-of-way from

Intérfering with thé transmission faciities. A

varﬂory of thhn!ques including power saws,

Emaappro?ed heibicides, mechanical
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Preventative Maintenar

ce




orais a suggested
st for planting:

. I%?aetlea#daﬁ-anasem‘apie
BropnLacelearMaple

\ jj&aiea;%f {many subspecios)
3:! rberry (many subspecies)
Sitverblotch Dogwood
Metttsd-D-ogwood
BraodgwodSiberian Dogwood

Forsythia (Fotsythia species)

. -flose'ofShar on (many subspeciss)
- Holly (many subspacies)

Honeystckle
Ann-Megnoila:

8argent Crabapple

Bwarf Alberta Spruce

'f?abls Top-Pine

.éjhododendron {many subspecias)
Most Litacs

Yows:
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